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Thursday, May 22, 2008

MR. PRATT: We"ll get started with an important
conversation we need to have today. 1°d like to introduce
our panelists for today. First we have Doug Ross,
University Preparatory Academy. Thank you again, Doug, for
hosting us here today. Sharon Claytor-Peters of
Michigan®s Children; Peggy McLellan of the
Michigan Education Association; Lois Lofton-Doniver
of the American Federation of Teachers - Michigan.
Representative Bettie Cook-Scott will be joining us. 1
believe she"s just running a little bit late. And at the
end, we have Dan Quisenberry of Michigan®s Charter Schools.
At this point I want to kick 1t to Mr. Ross, who has a
welcome, and Mr. Quisenberry who is helping us out.

MR. ROSS: Well, good afternoon. It is a genuine
pleasure to have you all here. You"re upon the campus of
University Prep High School. We have a middle school a
little less than a mile away, and an elementary a block away
and another elementary about to open. And whole purpose for
being created was to try and see if we could contribute to
this whole discussion about graduation rates and
post-secondary enrollments. And it"s terribly comfortable
having all of you here, and we"re excited to have you. With
that, we turn it over to Dan Quisenberry.

MR. QUISENBERRY: Thank you very much for hosting
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us, and that, yes, as a panel and as a group with all the
organizations that we represent, | want to thank you for
taking your time today to come out and talk about this
important topic. We"ve all been hearing a lot of news about
the dropout numbers. But translate that into number of
students. 20,000 Michigan students drop out of school every
single year. You can"t underestimate the economic
importance of that. 1It"s huge. It means lower incomes for
those students over the course of their life, which
translates to lower taxes, lower economic impact, lower --
all kinds of things are going to have serious side effects
for us as a society. And in Michigan alone, we"ve estimated
we have 85,000 jobs that are unfilled because we don"t have
people trained for them. So you can see the impact of this
issue is huge.

It"s estimated In some of the reports that have
come out that it costs Michigan taxpayers $127,000 per
dropout in those lost revenues and the overall impact with
those issues, welfare demands, other kinds of things that
aren"t available because of the fact they don"t have the
education they deserve. So the number of students that are
leaving our schools without a diploma impacts us in some
serious ways.

And we"re here today to take action. We all agree

there needs to be something done. One dropout student®s too
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many. 20,000 is far too many. So it"s certainly a
complicated problem. There is no one strategy or solution.
It"s complex. It"s about all of our students. And we
shouldn®t back down from trying to fix it because it"s
complicated, so that"s why we"re here and that"s why we"re
taking the time to listen, to invite you to have ten
hearings around the state and to bring diverse partners
together to do that.

Why are students dropping out? What impact has
that had on your community or the groups and circles where
you work and what you see? Why are they returning to school
when they do? What is working in schools and, frankly, what
doesn"t work in schools that may be encouraging kids to
leave? Those are the kind of questions we hope that you“re
ready to address and we want to listen to.

And we"re going to take copious notes, and iIt"s
being recorded. So we"re going to present these stories and
your input and the findings from these hearings around the
state at a Michigan Dropout Prevention Leadership Summit in
October, October 20th, in Lansing. And we"re going to
gather that information and present it to the leaders of the
legislature, to the governor after that. So we plan to move
this iInformation In a way that produces solutions that are
necessary to help more of our students graduate. And with

that and your active participation tonight, we hope to have
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some positive impact on this issue. So thank you for taking
the time. And, Doug, back to you to keep us moving.

MR. PRATT: Great. Thanks. First of
all, 1 want to say welcome to the Representative Bettie
Cook-Scott. Thank you for joining us. So here is how this
is going to work. I have -- when you came in, you had a
chance to fill out speaker cards. |If anybody hasn"t had a
chance to fTill out one of these speaker cards and you"d like
to share your testimony with us this afternoon, please feel
free to grab one. And if you raise your hand, I can go
outside and snag one for you, will do. 171l get one out to
you.

What we"re going to do, we"ll call you down in
five-minute segments. We"re going to be trying to keep to a
strict five-minute time limit just to keep things moving.
Bonnie, over there iIn the corner -- wave, Bonnie -- has a
sign saying ""One minute warning.” It means time®s up. So
if you could please monitor that and we"ll keep things
moving. That"s great. |If you have written comments you"d
like us to put that into the record, 1 will be happy to take
those. Please when you"re talking, speak clearly into the
microphone. Again, we are recording all this so that we can
present this testimony to the legislature and the governor
and the public, again, with that summit in October.

After you provide your testimony, our panelists
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may have a couple of questions for you, chat a bit, chat a
little bit about what you talked about, what they®ve heard,
things that might (inaudible) From there we are just going
to try to keep things moving.

After everyone here who would like to have a
chance to speak has had a chance to give testimony, we"re
going to open up the panel. The panel will talk a bit about
what they"ve heard and their experiences with this issue,
and we will wrap it up from there. So iIf there are any
questions at this point?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 1°ve got a question.

MR. PRATT: Sure.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What happens after you go
to this summit? So you go to this summit with all this
information, then what?

MR. PRATT: The goal iIs to present this to the --
the goal is to present this to the legislature so that we
can provide and define the breadth of this problem. So we
are going to be coming up with solutions based off of this.
But this is really about hearing and taking in the input
from the community from a broad group of people. And as we
go through this, we"ll see the broad spectrum of people who
are In this room and the experiences they bring to the
table. The goal is to help define this problem so that we

can really come up with solutions that are going to work
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over the long haul.

So with that, 1 am going to kick things off. We
do have somebody who -- Doug Dinger (phonetic) who has an
appointment. We"ve got a couple of people who need to lead
off, so 1"m going to start off with Shane Bernardo and then
I am going to go with Howard Lischeron next. Okay.
Appreciate it. Thank you.

MR. BERNARDO: Good evening. My name is Shane
Bernardo. And the population that 1 represent are parents
and an organization called Detroit Parent Network. And our
mission is to empower parents so they“re better equipped to
get the best education possible for their children. And
having said that, that is a challenge even in the work that
we do. We recognize as an organization that a healthy
educational environment includes the student, the parent,
the (inaudible) and the school administrators, being the

principal, the teacher, what have you.

And having said that, one dropout is too much when

we consider what®"s at stake both economically and socially.
And as parents, it"s hard to be engaged in your children®s
education when you®"re dealing with so many other things,
with trying to keep your house out of foreclosure and trying
to get a job, finding transportation to and from work.
Dropouts are a symptom of a larger socioeconomic picture.

There isn"t going to be one solution. There isn"t going to
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be one size that fits all that provides answers for every
single family"s student.

So again, the problems that we see in our schools,
it"s a result of something else. And partly what we try to
do Is we try to remove some of those barriers in some of the
work that we do by providing leadership training so parents
can become self-sufficient and they can find some ways of
working around those challenges, whatever they may be. We
also provide support in the way of support groups, finding
what*s worked for other people, maybe it can work for you.

I hate to be talking in such general terms but,
again, there isn"t going to be a one size fits all or a
silver bullet. 1 just want to reiterate (inaudible) no one
can take the full blame, for we should all take the full
responsibility as stakeholders in this community who aren"t
really making it, parents, the student, school administrator
or state legislator. We all have to come together. If this
is a systematic problem, this is a systematic problem. You
can"t focus on education if you"re not well, you"re not
healthy.

So let"s talk about a lot of things attribute to
our students dropping out of school. 1 mean, we could pick
on anything. We could talk about (inaudible), how that
effects the lives of children in this area. Look at the

number of (inaudible) accounts just in this area alone. We
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can talk about the possibility of (inaudible) so the parents
can get to some of the jobs in the suburbs. We could talk
about something about universal health care. Just creating
some equity not only in the education system but socially
and economically as well, because it all leads to our
children dropping out.

Most of the problems that occur in our schools are
not even connected with the schools. There are some safety
issues around our schools, making sure that our kids have
safe routes to school, making sure that parents are aware of
some of the iIssues at the state and the impacts that some of
these issues can have, like early childhood learning,
kindergarten isn"t mandatory. So we have to look at some of
these things that impact our children and our community, and
making sure that no matter what school model we look at that
it"s a fully resourced model. We can talk about little
schools, we can talk about big schools, we can talk about
charter schools, public schools. But if they®"re not fully
resourced, we"re just talking about the same thing. We"re
jJust moving the problem from one area to the next. Thank
you.

MS. CLAYTOR-PETERS: 1 just had a comment that 1
wanted to make. At Michigan®s Children we"ve had the
opportunity to work very well with the Detroit Parent

Network, which (inaudible) whole organization. One of your
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programmatic focus 1 think is really important, and that"s
the role of men in the community and fathers and that
fatherhood. The Detroit News today had an editorial about
the program right here at the University Prep with young
males talking about working with their peers to address that
problem. And it is a community problem that we need not
jJust fathers to work with their own children, but to take
the whole village and community approach and, particularly,
our —-- we need everybody to be involved, but certainly the
role of males given the statistics that we"ve been seeing.
So it"s more of a comment applauding the kind of
work that the Detroit Parent Network has been doing. It is
essential in some of the ways that we"re going to have to
really target and pinpoint the ways to address the
populations that are dropping out.
MR. BERNARDO: Yes. The group that you“re
speaking of is called the Men of DPN. 1It"s a --
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Would you say it again?
MR. BERNARDO: 1t"s called the Men of DPN. We
meet every third Friday at Youthville from 7:00 to 9:00 p.m.
And 1t"s a male support group where we network and
fellowship with each other, but where our single parent moms
that are part of the network, our organization, can bring
their young men and connect with a positive male mentor,

something that is of issue in our community. And what we
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spoke of was comparing expectations and priorities. When
you look at where our young men are ending up if they don"t
get a quality education that they deserve, they become
victims of violent acts or purveyors of them, or even in the
system, juvenile system all the way up to the corrections
system. So we have to look at where our priorities are,
look at how much our students are getting per student when
we talk about funding and compare that to how much we"re
allocating to the corrections system per prisoner. That"s
equity iIs not even In the conversation when you talk about
that. Thank you.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: 1 wanted to say to Scott (sic),
I"m State Representative Bettie Cook-Scott, Third District,
which is a little further east. In the House, we have
passed two bills, Scott; one out of committee and it"s going
to go to the floor. We want it to be mandatory that you
have to attend kindergarten. That"s something that we
agreed upon a couple of months ago. We do have another bill
that would make it mandatory that you stay in school at
least until you®"re 18 or until you graduate. We don"t like
to use the word 18. So those two bills are there. Dr.
Connie Callaway (phonetic) came and she spoke with us, and
she made an emphasis on children from the age of 3 being
educated. So again, we"re looking at it from all different

fronts.

12
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I just left a middle school, and 1 was very
saddened by 1t. 1t was career day. What you said about
stabilizing the home iIs something that"s really on the young
people®s minds. These home foreclosures are taking a toll
on the young people. These were eighth graders. They do
not know where they"re going to lay their head at night.

And so we have to really deal with that issue and coupled
with, you know, quality healthcare, nutrition, all of these
things like you said impact the students® ability to learn.
And at this school, it was very important for me to look at
it from a demographic point of view.

African-American females and males, more so males,
are less likely to graduate on time with their counterparts.
And part of that is the communal-type problems that exist in
the City of Detroit. And I"m only going to speak for the
City of Detroit, because that"s the only thing that I truly
know and have lived. The State of Michigan through our 110
legislators, we"re really looking at this issue. And we
want to be a partner in trying to put one piece into play to
solve this problem. And after this meeting, I am the only
Detroiter on the Education Committee. So you can send in
your e-mails, your letters, your phone calls, just get them
to me and I will make sure that your voices are heard up In
Lansing.

MR. PRATT: Next up we have Howard Lischeron.
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MR. LISCHERON: Good afternoon. [I"m happy to be
here today. 1°m the executive director of the Wayne
Mediation Center. And traditionally Wayne Mediation Center
has been involved with simply dispute resolution throughout
Wayne County. We began about a year and a half ago to
address the issue of school attendance, recognizing that the
skills that our staff and that our large corps of trained
volunteers have can be very valuable in assuring attendance
at school.

We began a truancy program, a truancy mediation
program. And we"re motivated by only one thing, and that is
kids simply cannot graduate if they don"t attend school on a
regular basis. And that"s what keeps us iIn this game of
truancy mediation. We began in the spring semester of last
year, and we have now been offering it for three consecutive
semesters. We are working in five schools in southwest
Detroit and are expanding our involvement into other areas
of the city and other areas of the county.

We"ve had the great fortune of before supported in
this work by United Way of Southeast Michigan, and the
Hudson Webber (phonetic) Foundation. Crucial to the work
we"re doing is one of our key staff members is here tonight,
Susan Barwick (phonetic), who is an attorney and a
specialist in child welfare issues and is heading up our

family and student programs.
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So far in this program we"ve mediated 127 truancy
cases. These are all the kids who have been identified as
having serious absentee issues. What we"ve found is that we
have found significant improvement in the attendance of the
kids that go through the mediation process. In fact,
there®s a 63 percent improvement in attendance. One of the
principals in one of the schools that we work in said iIt"s
the most significant truancy intervention program that she®s
ever seen and highly effective, highly imperfect, but highly
effective.

We"ve also found kind of a serendipitous value to
what we"re doing, and that is more and more of the school
staff who participate in this program with us have become
much more collaborative e much less punitive in their
approach to families and attendance. And the net effect is
a great improvement in attendance. We"ve been working in
dispute resolution for 21 years. And we look upon
absenteeism, chronic absenteeism, essentially as a dispute
between the family unit and the society in large that
presents barriers to attendance. And 1 very much agree with
the prior speaker that this is a systemic problem.

So taking that approach, we say simply this: We
are not rule enforcers. We are not judgmental. We simply
want to help families identify those barriers that prevent

them from attending school -- the kids from attending
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school. We found a lot of things: transportation a big
one; clothing; illness of the parent or illness of the
child; family work schedules where there®s a conflict;
housing issues, growing, 1 think, with the foreclosures;
handicap accommodation; in-school social problems; safe
routes to and from school. All of these are things that
keep kids from coming to school in addition to a very
deep-seated failure on the part of many families to value
attendance at school.

There®s little we can do on that last one. But
there"s a great deal that can be done on the prior reasons,
I believe. And how do we do that? We gather together
school personnel, social work capability, the family, often
the child, and bring them together around the table all at
the same time. We resolve problems and we work closely
with -- | see my time is up.

Let me just mention that we"re working closely
with Children®s Aid Society. And let me repeat, the Kids
that have gone through our mediation programs have had a 63
percent improvement in attendance. So thank you very much
for your time. If you have any questions, 1°d be --

MS. LOFTEN-DONOVER: Hi. 1"m Lois Loften-Donover,
and I"m from the American Federation of Teachers. And | was
interested when you said the social workers, because DPS

used to have social workers. We used to have attendance
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officers. And due to budget crunches or whatever, we no
longer have those in the school. And if we do have a social
worker, i1t is only for a special population. Would you be
in agreement to say that if we had social workers and
attendance officers at every school site that the child

would improve as far as attendance goes, attendance improve

and —-

MR. LISCHERON: Would you like me to be perfectly
honest?

MS. LOFTEN-DONOVER: Yes.

MR. LISCHERON: As the Huffman (phonetic) retired
special education teacher, 1 can say clearly that

specialists in the schools would be very helpful to the
kids. However, what we bring and what other people can
bring is a nonjudgmental problem solving attitude, and
that"s what"s needed. And I think certainly social workers
can help do that.

MS. LOFTEN-DONOVER: Thank you.

MR. LISCHERON: Certainly.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. Next up we have Sheila
McBride. And on deck after that is Lori Johnson.

MS. McBRIDE: Good afternoon everyone.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good afternoon.

MS. McBRIDE: My name is Sheila McBride, and 1 am

the founder of GradeCheck. We are an academic counseling --
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guidance counseling administrative service where we help and
assist students get into college. And | started this
company based on my son from an athletic perspective.

But before 1 get into my thoughts about the
dropout rate, it touches me personally, because 1 have quite
a few nieces and nephews who have dropped out of high
school. I"m originally from lowa. I grew up in Omaha,
Nebraska. And some of you may also know about this
particular situation. My son"s father, his name is Kevin
Ross. He was the first athlete who admitted to the world
that he was functionally i1lliterate; ended up going all the
way through high school, all the way through college on a
basketball scholarship and he could not read. So he went
back to Margaret Collins® school, who is the renowned
educator out of Chicago.

So because that hit so close to home for me, | did
not want my son to fall through the cracks. And myself,
being a product of a welfare environment, he had every
opportunity to fall through the cracks. | didn"t, because
school and sports kept me going. |If 1 didn"t have sports, |
probably would have dropped out of school. And I had one of
those mothers who would have loved me no matter what.

As a result of my efforts with my own son, he
ended up getting a full scholarship playing basketball at

Ohio University. We didn"t talk about NFL or NBA, none of
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that stuff. It was about him getting to the next level, any
means necessary. So we accomplished that, and 1 later found
that there was a need.

So as it relates to what my perspective is on the
dropout rate, 1 think that we need smaller classes. We hear
that all the time. There®s no question. 1 could not even
function in a large setting, let alone our kids. |1 don"t
want my children to be taught in a large environment. |
don"t think that"s productive. We have to deal with that
issue. And | know that it"s real prominent in Detroit
Public Schools. 1t"s totally unacceptable.

I also believe that we need to really start paying
our teachers better. Because iIf we don"t pay them right,
you can"t expect them to teach our -- you have a very good
reputation, by the way, Mr. Ross, of taking care of your
administrators, your teachers. So I commend you for that.

I"m sure you have teachers knocking down trying -- you have
a waiting list, I"m sure.

We do need parental involvement. And I will tell
you that GradeCheck gets 99.9 percent parental involvement.
They don"t come to me without their parents. And some folks
might look at it and say, well, it"s based on athletics.

No, it"s not. | have athletics and 1 have non-athletic
students In my system. |1 get parental involvement. |IFf you

expect much, you will get much. And I also say too, if you
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come my way, §iFf you become a part of GradeCheck, my

expectations are high that you represent GradeCheck like I™m

representing you.

I believe too that we need to mandate into law

jJust like you guys mandated into law that -- well, I don"t

think it"s been made a law yet, but to have -- to be in

school at age 18 and go to school, you know, as a

kindergartner or whatever. | couldn®"t even imagine not

having my child in school for kindergarten, nor preschool.

That®s just me. But also I™m a product of a welfare

environment, so I don®t believe that is really all about

where you"re from. It"s what you know. So really what you

believe iIn.

So we should mandate that we have parental

involvement. And if that parent or that guardian is not

there, then that®"s where those mentors will come in at.

Because GradeCheck, we"re mentoring as well. We"re guiding

them. We"re mentoring them. So we are that as well. So I

believe that with those processes in place that we can

really see more kids succeed.

And 1 know my time is up also. And I also want to

admit too -- state to you guys that I have invited -- | had

Margaret Collins on my show -- my radio show. 1 invited

Margaret Collins to come to Michigan. She said that she

would come to Michigan.

And i1t costs a lot of money to

20
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bring Margaret Collins to Michigan. But because of our
relationship, It"s not costing me anything like that. So I
want to extend the invitation to your organization, because
I think that anybody would be remiss if you had Margaret
Collins in your presence and not take advantage of her. So
because of what you guys are trying to accomplish and
because of how phenomenal she is, 1°d like to also include
you guys in that process. Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What is your age group?

MS. McBRIDE: My age group is from seventh to
twelfth graders. We have to start young so we start getting
our kids heads right?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What do you think about
this middle college process?

MS. McBRIDE: Actually, 1 think it"s great. But I
also think that, you know, when you guys are devising
putting certain pieces of puzzles or new criterias in place,
1"d like to be a part of that process. Because here"s why:
There is a new academic reform put in place at the
collegiate level, major, major decision. The reason why
it"s major is because before you had college coaches getting
fired and still do, getting fired because they don"t win;
right? Now with the new academic reform, called academic
progress reports that are put in place, now we have coaches

who are going to be fired because they"re losing
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scholarships. Okay? They started penalizing universities
last year. They had much more universities this year who
are being penalized. So what does that mean to the students
that we"re talking about? It diminishes their opportunities
of getting to school on an athletic scholarship as well,
because now the universities or the coaches they have to
look for a better type of student; right? So my point is is
that 1°d like to be a part of that process so | can, you
know, really let you know how to incorporate those measures
into what the big scheme of things are too as relates to
whole another set of kids.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay. You said you came
through sports. Now, is that the emphasis of your helping
students to get to college?

MS. McBRIDE: Academics. We don"t even -- you
won"t even see sports on my website, because strictly
academics.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: Just a quick one, too.

What do you think about the new high school graduation
requirements that we®ve just made into law?

MS. McBRIDE: Actually, 1 think that they"re in
line with what the requirements are for college. However,
if the kids aren"t making the grades, It"s -- to me it"s a
moot point. So you"ve got -- they"ve got to make the

grades, because the way I look at things, there®s a
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bigger -- there"s a bigger picture to look at. So you can
have those practices in place, but there"s a strategy that
has to take place too in order for the kids to get from
point A to point B. So it"s bigger than that.

MR. PRATT: Next up we have Lori Johnson.

MS. JOHNSON: Good afternoon everybody. My name
is Lori Johnson and 1"m here -- I1"m a teacher at University
Prep High School and representing teachers. Just to give
you a little bit of background of who I am and where 1 came
from, 1 started out at college a young person, big dreams,
dreams of grandeur to help educate kids and change the
world, of course. | started teaching at a large Detroit
high school, public high school, where 1 soon was, | guess,
found out the hard way that what I dreamt and what 1 thought
I could do for kids really wasn"t the goal at that time. So

I continued to meet opposition at every corner.

After one disappointing situation after the other,

I decided that maybe 1 should look into other career goals.
Where 1| was teaching they were still stuck in the old
factory design with large schools -- large classroom sizes,
rather. And beyond a textbook and a test, they really
didn"t care -- in my opinion, they really didn"t care about
really getting kids prepared for success and to be able to

live a quality life.

So after about five years, as | said, | decided to

look into some other things. But as luck would have it, |
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was meeting a friend of mine at Congressman John Conyers*®
office, and 1 observed a young lady there, a middle school
aged young girl. And I asked her, "Why aren®t you in school
today?" And she began to tell me that for her that was
school. That was school for her for the day. So, of
course, | inquired further and found out that she was there
working and learning as it she was an actual employee. And
she began to tell me about her school®s internship program.
And the staff there boasted about her maturity, how
efficient she was. And, of course, she bragged about her
school, University Preparatory Academy. 1 inquired even
further, rethought my choice to maybe do something other
than teaching, and 1 decided to send my resume in,
interview, and the rest, as they say, is history. So now I
have been with University Prep for over four years now.

Just to give you a little bit of background on our
high school, we were founded in 2000 with a specific
mission; that mission being to demonstrate at general
admission public school -- to demonstrate as a general --
excuse me -- admission public school with the same children,
same kinds of teachers, certified teachers, and revenue that

other DPS schools get could educate kids but with a
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dramatically different design. And that design used to
educate students, graduate students at the same rate as
other suburban schools, such as Birmingham, Grosse Pointe
and Troy, for example.

The goals that we set for our Ffirst graduating
class, which is the class of 2007, was very ambitious.
Those goals were very ambitious. 90 percent of the freshmen
class graduating, at least 90 percent of those graduates
attending college or other post-secondary studies. And as a
teacher who was part of that group of 2007 students, our
first graduating class, for four years 1°m proud to announce
that we graduated 93 percent of our students last June using
the state"s new generate -- new graduation measure, and that
91 percent of those students were enrolled in post-secondary
college or other post-secondary studies that fall. And with
our graduating class coming up for 2008, we expect some of

the same, similar stats.

IT you look up at the screen up here, to give you

a better understanding of our design, educators agree that
preparing a college rated high school graduate requires
three things: knowledge and skills, motivation and cultural
competence. The skills and knowledge expected -- the skills
and knowledge expected by the community, the motivation to
do the hard work, that rigorous academic demand, and the

cultural exposure and confidence to successfully enter the
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world of college and beyond, especially for children growing
up in a segregated inner city such as Detroit.

Traditional schools are designed on the assumption
that the motivation in acculturation, those two elements is
something that either the family or the community will
provide. So most schools are organized to provide just one
of those elements, and that"s the skills and knowledge that,
of course, are offered through your subject courses.

What we learned by visiting other successful urban
schools around the country coupled with our own experience
is that 1f you want to graduate 90 percent or more of your
kids, the school has to be designed to provide all three of
those elements; motivation, cultural confidence, as well as
skill and knowledge.

Also, to motivate students we use relationships
with adults, individualized learning and authentic real
world learning context. The 16 children that 1 had last
year in my advisory started with me iIn the ninth grade and
continue with me for all four years. 1 spend numerous
hours, ten to 12 -- on an average, ten to 12 hours a week
with them for the four years teaching them everything from
language arts, history, social studies, ACT prep, college
prep, things of that nature.

Most importantly, | took Ffull responsibility for

each and every one of my students®™ success, helping my
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students through things like custody battles, visits to
detention, juvenile detention centers, attending funerals,
even tracking down a student that was missing and was found
in a dilapidated home on the east side of Detroit. Also,
jJust normal things that high school students require; phone
calls late at night, anything from blanket crises to just
teenage drama. 1 was there for my students. And that can
be said of any of our advisor teachers here at U Prep High
School.

Simply put, without a caring and consistent adult
relationship, lots of urban kids will never be engaged and
motivated to learn and will probably end up dropping out.
There®s no way around it. Motivation is required for
student success. If | can give you a brief example, the
child enters the ninth grade with a fifth grade reading
level and you give that same student a ninth grade history
textbook, he"ll fail.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: True.

MS. JOHNSON: His belief that he can never succeed
as a student will increase. He then will more than likely
become a behavior problem, act out until he can drop out
just to save his own dignity. That"s where
individualization comes in. Each student here at UPA has an
individualized learning plan that allows us to start where

they are to assist them in their pursuits for academic
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achievement. In this way, more failure is avoided.
Motivation is high and success is possible.

Students must experience success and the public
recognition that goes with it to provide the intense and
sustained effort necessary for graduation. Finally, here at
U Prep we employ an aggressive form of authentic
learning through a program we call Learning Through
Internship, also known as LTI. Students who attended LTI
spend time with a person that is an expert in his or her
field that the student"s also interested and passionate
about. It helps students develop reality-based aspirations
and it advances our students into yet more relationships
with colleges and educated, concerned adults.

To conclude, at UPA we believe in the new three
R"s; rigor, relationship and relevance. But for urban kids,
relationships and relevance must be pursued with the same
energy as rigor if students are to make it and graduate.
Schools that are willing to organize themselves to provide
all three elements simultaneously, the three elements that 1
mentioned over there, can raise their graduation rate of
their students dramatically. And in any given school at any
given day, that should be the goal. Thank you.

MR. ROSS: Just a couple of quick comments. One,
it"s especially heroic that Lori is here, because in the

middle of the day she got word that her house had been
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broken into. So she ran home to deal with that and then ran
back so she could make her comments.

Two other quick things | think in relationship to
that, we have learned some things, the kind Lori was
describing, although which we mainly I guess borrowed or
lifted from other schools around the country that were doing
that. But at the same time, there are lots of things we
don*"t know. We know how to engage the kids, we know how to
keep them in high school, we know how to graduate them, we
know how to send them to college. We"ve got some evidence
that our first class is staying in college. But our
children are not as well academically prepared as kids
coming out of the best suburban schools. Our goal has to be
to provide competitive college readiness. We don"t do that
yet. We"re trying to learn it and we hope we can learn from
folks like those here.

The last thing I would say is we would certainly
concur with some of the earlier speakers that the
environment matters. Family and poverty and things of that
sort are a factor. But ultimately it"s our belief that it"s
the responsibility, therefore, of the school to organize in
such a way that it can overcome those and prepare all of our
kids to go on. Otherwise, if we"re going to say until the
poverty is gone and until the incinerators disappear, until

all families are engaged, we can"t expect our kids to
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succeed. We"ll be having this hearing in 25 years, except I
probably won*"t be here. So our notion is it is doable and
ifT we work together we can have it.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: 1I"ve got a question.

MS. JOHNSON: Yes.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: You sort of inferred and, if I
heard it right, that you keep your kids for the entire four
years?

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, we do.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: Okay. I think that"s excellent,
because you really become In tune with the child. And when
you"re testing them, you"re testing their ability and their
knowledge as opposed to what we tell you to test them for at
a certain period of time. 1 think that"s something that"s
unique about, you know, having a school like yours, whereas
in the public school everyone is more like a factory you
used or a factory model.

MS. JOHNSON: Yes.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: 1 know you were talking about
relating to the factories. But, you know, we have let the
individualized teaching to turn them into little robots and
as opposed to pass or achieve a certain skill level at a
certain time. And we know that that doesn"t happen. And 1
applaud the fact that you keep your kids, because that"s

something that we were talking about in the Education
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Committee that the kids would keep the same teacher through
the entire high school process.

MS. JOHNSON: Yes. And just that you"re very
right to say that. Also I found it interesting that when we
get to know our kids at that kind of level, spending that
kind of time with them, the buy-in then is out the roof.
They will tend to want to listen to you, want to believe in
you just based on the fact that you create that bond, that
family-like unit. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Okay. Next up we have John Ziraldo
and on deck after him is Shaun Jackson.

MR. ZIRALDO: Good evening. 1°m the CEO of
Lighthouse of Oakland County. We"re a human service
organization located in Pontiac. We provide emergency
assistance to individuals and families helping them from
crisis to self-sufficiency.

I come today to talk about our experience with a
program called Lighthouse for Learning. It"s a second
chance effort partnership we formed with the Pontiac Public
School District and the Oakland Intermediate School District
to provide an opportunity for youngsters and young people
who may not have completed high school, to complete school.
These are kids who have dropped out of an official public
school .

The motivation for us was that the Lighthouse
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operates a transitional housing program for homeless
families. And a portion of that program serves girls who
are 16 to 19 years old, pregnant and parenting. Many of
them have dropped out of school already. And so we reached
out to the public school system to say, ""How can we shape an
educational experience for these young women that would
enable them to complete high school?” The curriculum used
was computer based (inaudible) It provides individualized
instruction. More importantly, it enabled us to provide
education to these young women in ways that fit their lives
rather than asking them to fit their lives to a standard
school schedule.

The funding for the program came from the regular
per pupil allocation provided to the Pontiac Schools. And
so the teacher was a regular Pontiac school teacher, a
member of the teacher®s union there. The classroom was
located In our building in the community. If you were to
walk into it, it"d look just like a community computer lab,
one you might find in a public library.

And our experience at first was we had more space
in the program than we needed for the girls in our
transitional housing program. So we knocked on some doors
and invited kids who were in the community and who had
dropped out of the public school district to come and

complete their high school education. In the Ffirst year, 25
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enrolled. All 25 completed the school year. Six walked
away with a high school diploma at the end of the first
year. So we did it again, and 30 kids enrolled the second
year and another eight received that high school diploma at
the end.

The point today is simply that we were able to
provide education that fit the learning and social needs of
the student and allowed them to learn at their own pace.
And so if they could complete the algebra course in three
weeks, they could, you know, hit a button on the computer
and move to the next course. There was no waiting for the
next semester. The software actually tested students
carefully so that the material taught was what they did not
know .

I spend a lot of time in my work talking to
families in crisis, and many of them have not completed
school. And 1 frequently ask the question, "Why not?" And
although there are social barriers to attendance at high
school, a lot of the dropout program -- a lot of the dropout
problem that you hear described this evening talks about the
social circumstances in the lives of young people. The
truth is that for most high school students in urban
districts and suburban districts and in rural districts,
school is a boring experience. It fails to tap the talents

and interests and natural motivation of them as human
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beings. Traditional high schools, whether they"re charter
or public schools, tend to treat high school students from a
developmental point of view the same way they were treated
in the third grade. And yet we know they“re different folks
with different capabilities.

Our experience of engaging young people who had
been dropouts and who aspired to complete high school and
move on to college and other training simply said, if you
shape the experience of schooling around the individual
needs of students, remarkable things (inaudible) Thank you
for your time.

MR. QUISENBERRY: Would you have any off the
top of your head recommendations on -- | mean, the
opportunity you have here with your program and working
directly with a school district, are there things that could
be done that would encourage, enhance those partnerships
being real like that?

MR. ZIRALDO: 1In order for us to create the
program, we had to squeeze between the state"s regulations.
We had to skirt and duck and dodge most of what"s in the
school code, both policy and state law. The state rewards
seat time, not competency. That"s a problem. It"s a
problem that the legislature could solve tomorrow, quite
honestly. For most young people, they could complete the

state"s new academic requirements for high school by the end
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of their junior year. |If we really want to fund early
childhood education, we could eliminate twelfth grade and
move the dollars down to kids who are 4 or 5. | mean,
that"s a personal opinion. But I think that the experience
of high school for many kids is that they"re asked to either
move ahead at a pace faster than they"re prepared to, or
wait for everybody else in the class to catch up with where
they"re at.

And so one of the fundamental shifts that 1 think
has to happen is the ability to allow at least some schools,
perhaps not all, to operate on a competency based system and
to pay for and reward the acquisition of knowledge and skill
by students rather than the amount of time young people
spend sitting at a desk whether they learn or not. 1 mean,
the truth is, schools get paid whether students learn or
they don"t learn. And while 1°m not advocating a pay for
performance system, what 1"m saying is that the real reward
for young people should be acquiring knowledge and the skill
that they need to be successful in life. And the current
structure of the system pushes in the opposite direction.

MS. CLAYTOR-PETERS: 1 just wanted to reinforce
this issue that the cord that you"re striking iIs the one
that we"ve heard a lot around the state or in talking to
kids about preventing dropouts, and that"s that we need to

individualize. We need multiple pathways to success iIn
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school. And there is no cookie cutter approach that is
going to really work. And we could find -- if we can find
the flexibility, we could find ways to make kids effective
in varying setting.

And the other was a point to -- and 1°d like your
response on this, too -- a point actually to the University
Prep approach which helped about relationships with teachers
are the things that we talk a lot to kids. We really bring
in kids. We"ve done a lot of these settings in Detroit and
around the state where we listen to young people. And the
Detroit summer collective did a wonderful piece on what
caused young people to drop out. One of the things they
said again and again is about this relationship piece. |
mean, maybe with the real capabilities we could do things,
but they just don"t have anybody in the school that they
feel like really, you know -- if they“re in a real big
school, they don®t know that there®s anybody really knows
their names. 1°m wondering what you see on that point as
well.

MR. ZIRALDO: Well, I think the University Prep”"s
an example of trying to create an educational environment
for kids that"s built around their own interests and
aptitude. Our experience at Lighthouse for Learning is
simply that if you create a school structure that"s

flexible, 1 mean, many of the young people completed high
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school with us were working mid day at McDonald®"s; that busy
mid day shift at the local fast food restaurant.

Many of them dropped out simply because there were
younger siblings they had to care for or an elderly parent
or grandparent needed their support. That"s why they left
high school. So the program that we ran enabled them to
come in for a few hours in the morning, work in an
individualized learning plan to which they®d be held
accountable, and they could work at their own pace. And
then they could go off and work and then come back and spend
three or four more hours working. It was, you know, there
was no bell at 9:00 and at 3:00.

It"s interesting. A lot of people were afraid in
our agency what would happen when we brought in this group
of high school dropouts. There"s this perception that folks
have about them. My very first encounter with students in
the program, they asked if they could volunteer in the
agency to help the seniors that (inaudible) you know. The
school did not work for them, and our effort was simply
focused on trying to make school work for the student.

And so 1 think that there should be some room iIn
Michigan to create alternative models that allows students
to move towards graduation and success in life at their own
pace and in their own life. | mean, just ask yourself a

question. |If you were to get on an airplane this afternoon,
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which would be more important to you? How much time the
pilot spent in flight school, or whether they gained the
competency they needed to fly the plane safely?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Could you stay up there
Just one moment? You mentioned truancy. And when we took
testimony about the compulsory dropout rate, truancy came
up. And someone spoke, and I think It was a prosecutor said
that the doors would be open to them, because many of the
schools or the school®s agents, they would not go after the
students once they got their comp money. They would still
be roaming the streets.

MR. ZIRALDO: Right.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And because there is no
motivation for them to stay in school, you"d have to find
out why they®"re not going to school. And is it a myth too
that under this new graduation standards curriculum our kids
are flunking algebra? That"s what we were told, too; that
Algebra, 1 guess, | or Il is an impediment course.

MR. ZIRALDO: We did not have the experience --
well, 171l just say this. A more flexible approach like a
computer-based instruction for basic skills enables students
with low reading levels to take higher level courses. The
software made the adjustment. And so kids could spend more
time working on their reading skills if that was necessary

or less if it wasn"t necessary.
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The notion that, you know, everybody gets the same
dose of the medicine suggests that we"re all suffering from
the same 1ll. And so creating some flexibility at the
student level for instruction and allowing kids to proceed
at their own pace is | think a powerful -- is a powerful
opportunity there. Our program operated at the same per
pupil cost as any other school. And many kids would come in
simply because our building doesn®"t look like a school. 1
mean, the experience of school for them was that it was
negative. And so I think within the system there needs to
be some opportunity for young people to engage differently
and move towards the same successful result.

MR. PRATT: Next up we have Shawn Jackson.

MR. JACKSON: I came because I got an e-mail from
an associate of mine in Florida, and I read the press
release and kind of laughed. [I1*11 tell you why 1 laughed.
This is what®"s funny. How many parents are here tonight?
How many students are here tonight? This is what the issue
is, especially in DPS. And DPS I"m singling out because
I1"ve had some personal experiences at DPS.

Kids are smart. Kids are like computers. They
take information that they see, that they hear, they digest
it. It"s a meal for them. They take what they see on
television. That"s a multimedia meal. They iIngest it.

They digest it. In black communities, they live it.

The problem with educators, wonderful people that
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you are, is that you think in the 50°"s. Remember the days
of "Ozzie and Harriet"” where Little Beaver and all that?
That"s not the kids you"re dealing with today. Wally and
0Ozzie and Beaver would be much different people if they grew
up today with Tupac, 50 Cent, some of the other heroes that
our kids today deal with on a daily basis. With the
violence that our kids deal with being able to come to
school and get home safely, with the corruption that they
see in local school buildings, school rooms, from teachers,
from principals, all the way up to our hip-hop mayor, these
kids absorb this. They see the corruption. So in their
mind corruption isn"t bad.

Even on the white side, you take a look at Bill
Gates; very intelligent man, came from a wonderful family.
He dropped out of college and became very successful, 1
think one of the richest men in the world, isn"t he?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

MR. JACKSON: 50 Cent, Sean Puffy Combs -- okay --
not college, not academics. | think 50 Cents did 400
million last year. These are the things they see, athletes
who can dribble a ball and they®re making hundreds of
millions of dollars. So if you"re interested in getting
kids interested In academics, it"s going to be necessary for
you to understand that you®"ve got to get a kid"s attention

first. Get his attention. Once you"ve got his attention,
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you"ve got to design the information so that it relates to
him.

Most of the teachers are not happy, let"s put it
that way. And you®"re from the teacher®s union. Now, you
may be able to attest to some of that. But the ones we talk
to, they"re not happy. The kids know they"re not happy.
They know they®"re not cared about. The most important thing
is to take a look at the community and how your education
affects the community.

And the City of Detroit, you“ve got a community
well over 80 percent black and Arabs owning all the stores.
All the stores that the white people did own they sold to --
I mean, that they had, they sold to Arabs. Now you"ve got
to buy your air. You buy air. God gives it to you free,
but you®ve got to buy it for 50 cents from the gas station.
You buy your food from Arabs, you buy your clothes from
Arabs. You go to Kroger and now that®"s an Arab franchise.
The blacks who live there, the young kids, don"t even see
themselves as owning businesses.

So why is it necessary to gain those skills that
you were referring to, the academics? Get my point? That"s
it.

MR. ROSS: There"s a couple of things,
certainly a provocative presentation. First, | hope the

implication isn"t that in terms of immigrants coming and
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purchasing retail businesses is a bad thing, per se, or that
it reflects some fault on their part.

MR. JACKSON: It is. 1It"s a horrible thing. Let
me tell you why. Which one of us here, African-American,
you, wonderful lady with your wonderful position, can you go
to Irag and -- you understand what 1°m saying?

MR. ROSS: Actually, 1 don"t.

MR. JACKSON: No. I understand.

MR. ROSS: 1 guess 1 disagree with you
on this.

MR. JACKSON: The bottom line is African-Americans
need to own some of what they live around. Little
African-American kids need to be able to go into a store and
somebody back there looks like them. And what I"m saying to
you s the young people see -- the reason why we don-"t,
that"s our fault. But the kids that you"re teaching,
they"re not being empowered. They"re not understanding
where the academics come into play in business ownership, or
they"d be interested in owning businesses.

MR. ROSS: The second thing was it"s
kind of interesting, because Sharon made mention yesterday a
group of our tenth grade boys held a news conference. It
was covered in -- our school is 99.9 percent
African-American. And they made the following case: They

said, "Look, this low dropout rate, particularly for boys,
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reflects a basic choice that each of us who are boys iIn this
city have to make. There is what you call the academic
path; work hard in high school, graduate, go to college,
open business, get Into a profession or drop out, go into
the streets, sell drugs.” They said, as they looked at it,
it ultimately wasn"t that hard a decision; that they get an
extra million dollars at least by getting a college degree.
Most of the drug dealers in their neighborhood live with
their mothers. They know relatives, kids who end up dead or
in jJail. They don"t see that as desirable. And they-ve
learned from their teachers that young men in the city who
earn college degrees are also particularly socially
desirable to women.

So for 16-year-old boys, money, long life, no jail
time, cool women, sounds like a good deal. 1 think you
can —- | think with the kind of exposure out with business
people, African-American business people and professionals,
which is what we do in the internships, | think we can build
a critical mass of young men themselves who are saying
really your message; that we have pulls in different
directions. But if we stand back and you see people in
positions like yours succeeding, boys can make the right
decision. And that"s what 1 think we have to reinforce.

MR. JACKSON: If you listen to what you"re saying,

though, you"re saying you®"re going to have these Kkids go in
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and intern positions, things like that. And that"s fine.
It"s a good thing to learn to do work with somebody who has
a business. That"s not entrepreneurship.

What 1°"m saying is that schools need to understand
they"re like a city. A school is like a small city. Okay.
And within the school district you"ve got like a bigger
city. Okay. What needs to happen is you can get your
points of academics across If across your core curriculum
you put a vocational aspect, put a business in the school.
Don*t have kids working for somebody. Let them run the
business. Then they"ll really learn why they®ve got to
learn to read, why you®"ve got to learn the math, why you"ve
got to learn the social studies, why you®"ve got to learn the
science and solve problems. You have to do all the things
necessary to become interested in academics. Then you won"t
have a dropout rate. 1"ve never seen a kid walking down the
street with his hands down with a do-rag on his head who
does not understand street language, problem solving when
issues come up. He understands every aspect of academics,
but just not the academics that you want (inaudible)

MR. ROSS: Or the academics that get
him broad sustainable success iIn this society.

MR. JACKSON: Their success in their minds -- and
I"m not talking about what you"re saying from a personal

standpoint. I"m not saying that | disagree with you. What
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I"m trying to say is if you step out of your skin for a
moment and step into the skin of this kid, first of all, you
don"t kind of matter. He"s looking at what his idea of
success i1s. And his i1dea of success is a little different
from your idea of success. That"s why I"m saying it"s sort
of like "0zzie and Harriet" and today what we"re doing, and
there®s a difference there.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: Have you visited any of the
vo-tech centers?

MR. JACKSON: Oh, absolutely.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: Because, now, they do
promote -- we are doing more with advanced placement and we
are going in and (inaudible) in DPS. And 1 don"t only
represent DPS. 1 represent teachers all across Michigan
that fall under the umbrella of the American Federation of
Teachers. So we have the same problem when 1 go to
Whitefish where the students sometime are disengaged. And
we have found where we"re putting more in the shop classes
back into the schools, using their hands where they can see
they can create something and there is a brighter day for
them. But I have to defend the vo-techs because they are
there for those students. We don"t have to be an A student
to get Into a vo-tech program. They"re limited. They"re
very limited. | understand what he"s saying.

And when 1 went through school we did have trade
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schools, vocational school, business schools, college prep
schools. We need to go back to that model to help some of
the kids to become entrepreneurs and to get into the
apprenticeship programs. They are very limited. When 1 ran
for city council, that was one of the things that 1 spoke
about, the educational system going back to adding more of
those schools within the community, because many of our
kids, like Mr. Jackson said, do not see professionals living
next door or professionals living around the corner. And
I"m not agreeing with you totally, but 1 do think that you
will mirror the image that you see most of the time.

MR. JACKSON: What she"s saying, though, is the
word "‘placement.' Here again, you know, 1 guess what 1"m
trying to say is this: Don"t you guys get it? These kids
want to be important. They don"t want to work for somebody
else.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: But if you get the skills,
sir -- this is what 1"m saying. |If you get in the program,
you get a skill, then you would.

MR. JACKSON: (inaudible) lightly 1 saw on the
program you®re talking about. This is where Ford Motor
Company brings an automobile, puts an automobile in the
building. The kids learn how to take a car apart, put it
back together; right? Okay. The kids also paint an

automobile in there. However, they don"t know a thing about
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owning a bump shop, owning the business. They"re employees.
You"re bringing them up to be employees. And if you talk to
the gentleman over there, the one that owns the two Rolls
Royces, who he painted a friend of mine®"s car, he will tell
you you can"t get the kids interested because they don"t
make the connection between entrepreneurship owning.

They"re interested only in the fact that they are working
and able to go and get a job.

And see, that"s the problem with what"s in the
black community now. Everybody"s looking for somebody to
come to and say, ‘Listen, will you hire me? Will you hire
me?"" But the Arabs came here and the Arabs aren"t asking,
"Will you hire me?"” They"re opening businesses. Not good
businesses, not nice businesses, not real elaborate, not
even healthy businesses, but over time they get better and
better and better and they didn>t go through your DPS.

MR. ROSS: 1 just think I have to say
that your last statement | think is racist. It generalizes
about all people and 1 think that"s at least personally
(inaudible)

MR. JACKSON: I"m sorry. 1 don"t mean to offend
you. Sorry.

MR. ROSS: I™"m not Arab-American, but
I feel strongly about it.

MR. PRATT: Okay. Next up we have Sean Kosotsky.
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MR. KOSOTSKY: Thank you, Doug. Thank you all for
hosting this hearing. This is very important. |1 work for
the Triangle Foundation. [I™"m the director of policy. And
I"m here today representing the Michigan State Schools
Coalition. 1 also want to thank Representative Bettie
Cook-Scott for voting for Matt"s Law, which is a bill in the
state legislature that passed the Michigan House of
Representatives a year ago and is still sitting in the
Michigan Senate waiting a hopeful passage this year.

To catch folks up on Matt"s Law, this iIs a
legislation that"s been around since 2001. It was
introduced by State Senator Buzz Thomas back in 2001, now
it"s State Senator Glen Anderson and in the House Pam
Byrnes. That would not focus on discipline at all, but
would require that every school district in the state have a
policy on bullying. Every public school and every public
school academy would have to have a policy dealing with
bullying. 1t completely allows for local control and allows
local school districts to determine for themselves what"s in
the policy. But it would require a uniform statewide
definition of bullying, cyber bullying and require that
every school district then pass the policy after having a
public hearing and sending a copy to the state so we can

actually track which district has a policy.
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Bullying we know leads to depression, suicide,
poor grades, other school violence, including school
shootings. We know of a social work maxim, "Hurt people
hurt people,”™ so now that you"ve been bullied, sometimes
become bullies. And also substance abuse, truancy and, of
course, dropping out of school. Each of those things
affects our economy, each of those things actually affects
each other in terms of exacerbating the problem of dropping
out of school.

Some bullied students -- I"m glad folks are
talking about the fact that schools may need to be
counteracting what they see as the possible feelings in the
learning society or possibly even in the home. There are
many youth who are bullied who will not tell their parents
that they"re being bullied, because nothing is more
humiliating than having your parents step in and try to
solve a bullying issue in your school. Some young people
won"t come out to their parents if they"re gay or lesbian or
if they"ve done something in school they don"t want their
parents to know; kissed a boy or worn something that was
particularly embarrassing or whatever. They don"t want
their parents to know about this stuff going on in their
school. So the schools do have to have and step up their

own enforcement and dealing with bullying in schools.

Also | already focused on the fact that the Matt"s
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Law is not a discipline focused thing. We don"t go after
the bully. We don"t try and enforce any kind of discipline
on the bully. But Matt"s Law is a solution when we"re
talking about high school dropout and middle school dropout
rates that we"re supposed to be creating safe access for
education in America guaranteed by the 14th Amendment. And
unfortunately, unless we pass policies that specifically
name the youth that are at risk -- and the 14th Amendment
particularly means minority youth. Unless we specifically
say these youth are protected, the way our system of laws
works, unless you prohibit something, you permit it. And
so, therefore, you have to specifically prohibit
anti-racist, sexist, homophobic, bullying in schools,
because there are school professionals that don®"t have warm
feelings about certain minority youth, Arab, Muslim, gay,
heavy, whatever. So you need to specifically enumerate and
name the youth that are protected under the 14th Amendment.
And that"s one of the things that Matt"s Law does.

So | just wanted to encourage folks who are
supportive of anti-bullying measures in our state to do all
that you can to encourage your state senator and the
governor, who"s a supporter of this legislation, to pass
Matt"s Law. Because data does suggest from the -- there"s a
report from the Gay Lesbian Straight Education Network

called "Teasing to Torment" that shows in the national
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school climate survey that about 10 percent of youth drop
out of school or skip school because they are trying to
avoid a bully or potential gang bullying situation in their
school or on the way to school or on the bus or something
like that.

In addition to 10 percent, there are about -- the
same study reported that about 54 percent or 51 percent of
students in school like school. But those that are enduring
bullying, i1t"s about 10 percent actually enjoy school. And
that®"s one of the other statistics that we have out there
about why folks may be choosing some alternative to their
school .

111 close with just a story about something that
happened in my high school. | went to Sterling Heights. 1
went to Stevenson High School in Sterling Heights, graduated
in 1994. There was a young man in my school who on the week
before school end -- It was my senior year, It was his
jJunior year -- he was cornered because he looked different.
He looked like he was gay. It doesn®"t even matter if he was
or not, but these students believed him to be gay. And they
cornered him in a hallway where no one else could see,
because i1t was this kind of mapped out school where it was a
discrete kind of hallway. And six students who were seniors
cornered him and spat on him for about ten minutes. And he

was just with each spit, with each scream, with each name
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calling incident to this young man, my friend Zach, his
self-esteem was just sinking further and further into the
toilet. He got up after ten minutes of this humiliating
behavior, went to the principal, explained to her what had
jJust happened to him dripping with spit, and she said,
"Well, they"re seniors and they"re about to graduate.
There®s not much I can do."™ On that day he dropped out of
high school.

And 1 see him In the community to this day not
what he wanted to be, which was a doctor. And I see him in
careers changing almost every single year, because his
future was stolen from him by education professionals who
believed that they were exempt from doing something for this
young man. So I just wanted to -- my time is up, but 1
wanted to encourage anyone to see Matt"s Law as a solution
to the dropout and truancy problem in Michigan. Thank you.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: Sean, I1°d just like to make
a comment. 1 think that"s a wonderful law. But even if it
becomes law, if there®s no monitoring of that law, it will
Just be a piece of paper in the building. So what I"m going
to advocate for with your law, it needs to be some money put
in there where they can monitor those buildings to make sure
it"s being implemented. Because we pass so many things and
then we have to dust them off when one parent maybe speaks

up. But if you"re aware there are people coming in
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checking, just like the state comes in to see if you“re in
compliance in special ed, you need that for that law. It"s
a wonderful law, and 1 give it all -- AFT Michigan can use
all the support.

MR. KOSOTSKY: Thank you. MEA and AFT are both
strong supporters, as our other members of this panel. The
original Matt"s Law had requirements for training and but
many allies of the bill have stripped out until the state
can afford to pay for those kinds of trainings. They pulled
that out of the bill. Currently, it"s a very bare bones
measure that just requires that all the policies are in
place. 1 would certainly welcome a requirement that the
state or that school districts do some kind of training.

But at a minimum there is data to suggest that
students who are in a district that actually have a policy
on bullying and a policy that enumerates protection report
feeling safer and more likely to report the incident, unlike
right now where there is nothing and it"s just this belief
that bullying is bad and youth are supposed to know that
they"re allowed to report that. But | agree with you.

Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next up we"re going to have two people
to testify. We have Paul McGilberry and Kelly Ruffing.

MS. RUFFING: We"d like to thank you for having us

today and for having us here. And we really appreciate the
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opportunity to speak. My name is Kelly and 1 work with the
Wayne County Department of Human Services. And | oversee a
pillot 1 call it a high school completion program versus
dropout prevention.

But what we"re here to speak on today is we"re
very concerned about the dropout rate among foster youth as
a subpopulation. National studies have shown they have
twice the dropout rate as the general population. And in a
study that was done through Wayne State University a couple
of years ago, they had -- they looked at close to 300 youth
who would age out of foster care. They were about 20 years
old, and only 37 percent left foster care with a high school
diploma. And so | submitted a report to Katie, because I
don"t want to spend a lot of time up here. 1 really want
Paul to talk.

But the report outlines some very specific
strategies we can do to reduce the dropout rate among the
subpopulation. And the strategies | think can be extended
to other highly mobile populations, because that"s really a
strong factor that effects the dropout rate among foster
youth. 1t"s how mobile they are. Usually when they change
placements they change schools. They lose credits, they
lose friends, they lose relationships, and 1t"s really —- 1|
think it"s the strategies proposed could be extended to

homeless youth and also to youth who are involved with the
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jJuvenile justice system.

So I*m going to let Paul speak. He would -- we
didn"t know what the format was today, so he"d really prefer
just to field questions, but 1 can tell you he®s involved
with our program. He has beat the odds. He"ll be graduated
from Southeastern this next week. But he has been in more
placements and more schools than he can even enumerate. He
thinks maybe 30 schools between when he entered foster care
age 1 until today. So I want him to field your questions.

MR. McGILBERRY: Well, like she said, 1"ve been to
six high schools. 1°ve been to 14 middle schools, and I"ve
been to somewhere around eight to nine elementary schools in
my time of placement in all the placements. And 1°ve seen a
lot of things happen, and 1°ve been in high school -- this
is my Fifth year in high school. And I just kept on going,
but things got harder and harder.

And 1 had a friend recently that dropped out about
two weeks ago, and she has got pregnant by my best friend.

And I tried my best. 1 kept telling her to come back to

school. I mean, she still could have. She was in eleventh
grade. That"s the age that my dad dropped out. And I will

be the first in my family to graduate. And that was a dream

I wanted to do, so | can be proud about that. And when he was in
(inaudible) he made a point about people getting bullied. 1
understand what he says about that, but people -- 1If someone is

talking about you and you don"t say nothing, they don"t --
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they don"t feel that you’re just a little wuss. And if you

were to talk back at them, they didn"t have much respect

for your, or leave you alone or perhaps even become your friend.

But me, 1 don"t -- I really don"t mess around

with them, because | have a bit of a slight anger problem.
And I hate to say that, but I do. 1 have a very -- 1 really
do, because a lot of things happened In my past. And I
don®"t want to say.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What®"s been consistent in
your life to motivate you to achieve this goal that"s within
two weeks of graduating from high school since you“ve been
in so many different foster arrangements?

MR. McGILBERRY: That"s a very hard question for
me actually, because a lot of things, like, every day I go
on there®s something bad that always happens. But some of
the problems just won®t quit or give it up. (inaudible) But
I don"t know. You see what I"m trying to say?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Do you have contact -- do
you have siblings?

MR. McGILBERRY: Well, this might sound kind of
funny, but 1 have 20 brothers and sisters, and | have not
met each and every one of them. But I have at least met 14

out of 20.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Are they all in the system?
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MR. McGILBERRY: Pardon me?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Are they in the foster care
system as well?

MR. McGILBERRY: Some are older and some didn"t,
you know, go on and Finish high school or anything. And I
have five that"s up under me right now -- four up under me
and one is older. The rest are maybe older.

MS. CLAYTOR-PETERS: 1 commend you for
keeping -- for the contact with them. But I wanted to ask
you too about after you spoke to us about the multiple
placements In school and oftentimes when a kid is in foster
care and you"re placed here, there and everywhere and it"s
you don"t have control over keeping in school and then you
look up and you"re losing credits for it. And 1"m wondering
how did you manage to amass the credits needed to be able to
graduate even iIn five years with that many placements? And
are there any hints or advice that you want to give to
people? There are people here in the legislature, there are
people here from the State Board of Education. Are there
any advice that you might give that could change that?

MR. McGILBERRY: What I wanted to say is | have --
I seen that I have a lot of workers and all that. But if
you have a lot more to stick with the student and just
having one worker having maybe one eight or seven people to

work with, that"s not going to work with because a lot of
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people drop out. And I mean, it makes it better. But 1
haven®t had anyone -- some of the schools that -- 1 was
going to Finney, 1 had it up there, and you still don"t
(inaudible) and then he had failed me and gave me straight
F*s. But 1 was at another school and 1 had went from there
to Southeastern. And | stayed at Southeastern, but they
didn"t have all my credit. So I went back to Charlotte Ford
(phonetic) and I had my credits from there. And right now
I"m graduating with the most credits in my school.

MS. CLAYTOR-PETERS: Thank you.

MS. RUFFING: 1It"s so hard for me. | need duct
tape. But, Sharon, in response to your question, Maine and
California have passed very progressive legislation that has
extended the McKinney-Bento rights of homeless youth to --
and who have frequent placements, because right now it"s
just -- | mean, youth awaiting foster care placements or a
youth who has an emergency placement, they remain in their
school (inaudible) but they extended that to youth who have,
like, I think in Maine it"s less -- or up to three
placements in one year they consider them highly mobile.

But there®s different definitions where they could expand to
that, so they appointed foster care liaisons in the
districts that help with credit transfers and transfers of
records. They have funding for transportation so that if a

youth does change foster care placements they have -- they
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can remain in their school for the remainder of the academic
year.

And so within DHS we"re certainly looking at what
we"re doing to reduce school mobility. But we want a
partner with the school system and maybe the Department of
Corrections or Labor and some of the other groups so that we
can expand support for this type of legislation. Because
it"s something that DHS feels a very high priority, but we
want to get other systems involved. And we would love some
legislative action, because that®"s where something such as
uniform calculation of partial credits could be something
that could be dictated from the state so that when they do
transfer schools they don®t lose a bunch of credit, because
they get frustrated. They lose credit, they realize they"re
not going to graduate with their class, and they drop out
because (inaudible) Sorry, Paul.

MR. ROSS: What we do doesn®t always
work. But that kind of small family style advisory that
Lori Johnson was talking about where we really say you are
the aunt or uncle who went to college, these are 16 nieces
and nephews you have to stay with them. 1t gives us the
ability as children®s either families move or they"re
shifted even to youth villages or foster homes and so forth
to attempt to aggressively work to keep them so that the

school becomes some point of stability in what is otherwise
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an ever changing world. It"s about, again, designing
schools so that they can work for kids rather than say it"s
one size fits all. And if you don"t fit, you don"t fit.
Because i1f you have to move six times -- unless you have
some kind of baked in drive like you do, which goodness
knows where it came from, but it"s wonderful and it"s a
credit to you, you just leave. It"s too much.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Kelly. Oh, I"m sorry. Go
ahead, Paul.

MR. McGILBERRY: 1°11 just add please just have a
lot more workers than just what you"re having now. 1 mean,
it"s just hard for people to see their worker maybe once a
week and that"s it.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Caseworker?

MR. McGILBERRY: Yes. And I haven®t even seen my

state worker, you know.

(inaudible)

MR. McGILBERRY: But if a teacher would like to
spend more time and just be with the student on and off
school, then the student, I mean, less likely drop out,
because if they -- if they could have all the teachers like
to teach them, then there®s no point for them to drop out.

MS. RUFFING: And Paul was mentioning on the way
over that oftentimes the school teach them and there will be

one or two teachers that all the students really like and so
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they" 1l kind of gravitate toward that teacher. And then
that teacher doesn®t have time to build relationships with
all the students that like that teacher. And he was saying
that, yeah, iIn schools there were teachers that he could
relate to by trying to get in to hang out with them or

seeing them, and there would be a bunch of kids there.

So --
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What a cool teacher.
MS. MCLELLAN: 1°d like to follow-up on
that. First of all, Paul, I have to commend you.

Congratulations on your graduation. That Is so exciting.

MR. McGILBERRY: Thank you.

MS. MCLELLAN: But it seems to me that
having people like you in schools to be that person with
whom the students can have a relationship, someone like you
who"s been there, I don"t know what your plans are for the
future, whether you®re thinking of being a teacher or
something, but even if you were partnering with some of
these organizations we"ve heard from today and saying, "I1"11
be at the school. 1711 be the person who forms a
relationship and helps these students stay in school,”™ and
I"m sure there are other young people who are as motivated
as you are, | just think that that would be wonderful i1f you
could find a way to work with other kids who have been where

you are and to say to them, "Yeah, it was hard, but 1 made
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it.” I"m very impressed with you, Paul.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It would be a good
(inaudible) high school graduates to go back to mentor some
of them.

MR. McGILBERRY: 1 have thought about going back
and visiting a lot of my high schools.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What are you planning to do
after you graduate?

MR. McGILBERRY: 1"m going -- plan on going to
CCS, College for Creative Studies. And I wanted (inaudible)

I just can"t work that (inaudible) architect, computer graphics,
fashion design and 1 wanted to learn how to do cars, because 1
don®t know any names of any cars.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Have you been accepted at
CCS with a financial package for the fall?

MR. McGILBERRY: Well, 1™m trying to get my
portfolio started and because they had recently been
destroyed. So I1"m working on that and my ACT.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: Well, Paul, the Lord has blessed
you very, very richly, because you said you have an anger
problem. But I guess we don"t bring out that side of you.

We don"t want to see it anyway. 1 am -- if you went to
Finney and you go to Southeastern, what street do you live
on?

MR. McGILBERRY: Well, I live on a lot of streets.
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I lived on -- eventually 1"m living now, I live on Gratiot
and (inaudible).

MS. COOK-SCOTT: What"s that last --

MR. McGILBERRY: Gratiot and (inaudible)

MS. COOK-SCOTT: Well, it doesn™t make a
difference. You"re iIn my district. My office will be open
to you. Take my number and we will be a resource for you.
I"m up for reelection. |1 hope to be there an additional
four years. And that should get you through college by
having someone that you can talk to. |1 did not come from
foster care. But my mother had 12 children, and 1 was
number eight. And there was only two -- well, three of us
alive today, including me. So you hit the jackpot by
talking to me. And 1 do understand foster care. |1 do
understand homelessness, you know, through nieces and
nephews and some of my family. So again, you can utilize my
office. And hopefully in the future you may want to do an
intern with the state, and you can help us to even craft
some of the laws to take care of some of the problems that
you“ve gone through as you®"ve seen -- or you have seen over
your -- what? -- 20 years, 19 years?

MR. McGILBERRY: 19.

MS. COOK-SCOTT: 19.

MR. PRATT: AIll right. Next up we have Stephanie

Tinsley. (inaudible)
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MS. TINSLEY: Hello. My name is Stephanie
Tinsley, and 1"m a graduating senior at Consortium College
Preparatory High School. And 1 just want to tell you about
the low graduating dropout rate for, you know, the seniors.
I think that"s, you know, very disappointing because, you
know, I"m graduating and I have so much motivation as to why
I want to stay in school, but a lot of people don"t. And,
you know, one of the possible reasons why a lot of the
seniors (inaudible) drop out is because they feel, you know,
that it"s a waste of time to be in class seven hours five
days a week when, you know, they“re really not interested in
the subject, you know, math and science are really not that
interesting. So, you know, if they say, "Well, 1 don"t want
be here anymore.™

But at my school, Consortium, you know, we"re
dedicated into keeping the students® interest. For example,
we have, like, you know, relativity and enjoyment. Now, in
our classes we have, you know, teachers who actually care
about what we go through and, you know, they care about what
we think is boring, and they do the exact opposite, you
know. In our classes in history, that®"s my favorite
subject. Some students may think that history is really
boring, but our teacher, she does time lines and games and,
you know, she doesn"t make up any songs but she makes it --

she puts the work in layman®s terms where we understand it

to
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better. And, you know, math -- our math teacher, he plays
games with us also. And so, you know, there®"s a lot of
things that, you know, teachers at schools can do to keep
the students®, you know, attention in classes and it makes
them not want to drop out, you know.

Some teachers, they come to work, you know, and
they bring their matters to school. And, you know, us
students, we have a lot of, you know, problems of our own.
And when, you know, the teacher doesn®"t want to teach, it
makes us not want to be iIn that environment anymore. So we
remove ourselves and we just don"t go back even if it"s what
we want to do. But, you know, Consortium is very helpful
and the teachers, they care and we go to them and we talk to
them, and they relate. We have one teacher, Ms. George
(phonetic), she"s very different from us, but through
teaching, | think that we learn things from her and she
learns things from us. And we just go to her. We confide
in her. And all of our teachers, we really can confide in
all of them, because we know that they care about us and
they care about what we think. They care about what we
think i1s, you know, like, most important, like, family and
school and work, you know.

As a senior, you know, I have senior dues and I
have work that 1 have to get in and college acceptance,

scholarships and everything, and our teachers know. So, you
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know, not only do they give us a lot of work to do, you
know, they also make the subject fun so that when we go to
class we want to learn it. And then when we go home, we
want to do whatever else we want to do.

But, you know, 1 think that dropping out is --
it"s very —— if I can say it, it"s a very —- it"s the worst
thing that do, you know. You just don"t want to drop out
because you feel that it"s getting hard. |If anything, if
It"s getting hard, i1t should motivate you to overcome that
so when you are at a future and you have your degree from
college, you look back and say, "1 wanted to drop out so
bad, but, you know, I had this dream and 1 have goals that
make me just want to succeed, you know. It makes me want
to, you know, just get over all those obstacles and work
through it."" But, you know, at my school, you know, I®m
valedictorian, so 1It"s my job to motivate everybody else,
you know. It"s very hard to -- |1 mean, it"s very -- It"s
very easy to drop out. But I tell them it"s such -- It"s so
much better on the other side of the tracks, you know. Just
imagine how Oprah feels, you know. She came from a bad
background but, you know, she had a dream and everybody else
has a dream, you know.

IT only the teachers could make the subjects fun,
make then relatable, speak in layman®s terms, you know,

we"ll get it and that will make people not want to drop out.
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MR. ATKINS: Good evening. My name is Rod Atkins.
I"m the principal at the school that this young lady goes
to, so I should -- and she"s one of the easy ones. She is
brilliant. She"s going to school to become a doctor. She
has a full scholarship to the University of Detroit. And
she has a lot of challenges that a lot of children in
Detroit have. 1°ve got one minute, so I"m going to try to
sum this up. 1711 try to sum it up as quickly as 1 can.

Stephanie i1s an exception. She has a lot of
challenges that a lot of our children have, but she"s very
focused. |If you talk to her, we are talking to younger
children, she will tell them she is going to school to
become a doctor. And the reason that she wants to become a
doctor is because she wants to bring life into the world,
which 1s an amazing goal for a young lady that is the age of
18. A lot of our children today have a lot of issues, as
has been stated earlier. These issues are hard to relate to
from a teacher"s perspective. A lot of our teachers are
from the middle class, upper class. A lot of our teachers
are from different backgrounds, different races, different
creeds. And it"s hard for the average teacher to truly
relate to these students. It"s very hard, no matter how
hard they try. It"s very difficult for a white female
teacher to relate to a young African-American male that

comes from a broken home, who"s father®s in prison. And 1
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can go on and on with the examples. It"s very difficult.
The behavior issues come up and 1t"s immediately they"re up
for special education.

There"s a huge disconnect here. And we do start
losing boys for sure around that third and fourth grade
period of time. You can see it as plain as we can see each
other right here. Detroit has to start (inaudible) with
things. We have to start looking at schools that are
dedicated towards boys. We have to start having cultural
diversity and awareness for our teachers so that they can
better relate to these young people, because there i1s a
disconnect there and you cannot discipline someone if that
someone cannot relate to you. A principal that 1 know at
George Crockett Academy used to always say she was envious
of me because when 1 walked into a classroom to give
speeches or presentations, | often had the attention of male
students. And i1t was probably partly simply because 1 am an
African-American male and they can relate to me.

Oftentimes we ask them what they want to do,
something that the gentleman was talking about earlier. |1
cannot stand 1t when a young male tells me, "I want to
become a basketball player™ or, "I want to become a football
player.” And I quickly tell them the odds of them becoming
that is pretty much the same as -- 1 played high school

basketball and 1 played college basketball, so 1 know how
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hard it is to even think about getting to that point in
life. And the example that | use is you"ve got 484
basketball players. When 1 was coming up the last names
were Smith, Williams and Johnson. And, you know, you could
relate a little bit more. But now it"s the last names of
Ming, and other names we can"t even pronunciate. It"s a
different ball game, you know. Detlef Schrempf for those of
you who are a little bit older was about the only foreign
player that we had back then, back in the 80"s.

But Detroit has a lot to do if you can™t relate to
these children and you cannot teach them. 1 am a
self-proclaimed advocate of Ron Edmunds (phonetic) who said
basically we have everything that we need to educate
children, and we do. We have brilliant people in DPS, in
charter schools. And we have brilliant minds. But we
haven®t as a society has said this is such an Important
priority for us that we are going to truly educate children
and get them to where they need to be, because it"s just not
a priority for us. Thank you.

MR. ROSS: Let me first congratulate you on
Consortium, which has a very good reputation. We survey our
children anonymously a lot, and the interesting thing we
found i1s, which is a little maybe different than your
experience, is as we look at levels of self-defined

engagement, how they enjoy it, et cetera, we can"t find any
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correlation between the race, age or gender of the teachers.
We kind of assumed the majority of our staff is people of
color. But we can"t find a correlation. We thought maybe
young. Naturally, 1 think old is not bad. But it turned
out age wasn"t either. So our sense here is that
teaching -- good teaching seems to transcend it so that
African-Americans can be effective teachers in white school
districts and Asian-Americans can be effective teachers in
African-American predominant schools, and at least that was
our experience.

MR. ATKINS: Yeah. And I don"t dispute that
experience, Doug. 1 think that our programs are probably a
little bit unique in the perspective of a charter school
experience. When can go down into the lower grades, most
elementary schools that I go to, the typical teacher is a
white female. And white females are normally involved iIn
different structures of the students. | think a good
teacher can transcend it if they work very hard at
understanding the child and motivating them. But
(inaudible) and 1 think the average teacher needs a little
bit more training as far as urban education goes to
understand the backgrounds of the children. Because they“re
tough. They"re very tough, you know. From the standpoint
of from single-parent homes, if you look at Detroit today,

you"re talking about 1"d say maybe depression, some people
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say recession. But it"s hard to talk to a parent about
coming to a parent-teacher conference when their primary
focus is keeping the lights on and the electricity on and so
forth. It’s very difficult.

So unless you find a way to motivate that child
where that school is a place where they want to be and they
expect to love children, it"s just going to be difficult.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: 1 would just like to say --
and | agree with you. 1 sit on the board for the teacher
standards for when you can get certified in the state. And
one of the new standards that we implemented was diversity;
that the teachers must have been exposed to a diverse
population, because it is, you know -- you think you can do
it and you can"t always transcend. And the powers that be
have looked at that and decided, before you will become a
certified teacher, you will have a diversity program and
you“ve gone through it and indicated the national boards
that review all the colleges of education as -- if you fall
down on that, you don"t pass the board exam. So it is a
problem that is being recognized. And we are working
towards a remedy for that.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. Mr. Ross has another
meeting, so | want to thank him for being on this panel.
(inaudible) And I believe Representative Cook-Scott is

going to have to leave as well, so thank you for your time
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as well. Next up we have -- we are going to keep going,
though, and Ryan Dinkgrave, come on down.

MR. DINKGRAVE: | started out originally with some
stuff written that 1 wanted to say, and I just kind of scribbled all
over it with other things, so 1’1l try to keep to the time
restriction. But my name is Ryan Dinkgrave. My background is really
in grassroots advocacy for diabetes research and stem cell research
that will cure diabetes. But for the past two years I"ve
been working at Focus Hope and I"ve found a real interest
personally In educate and how that ties to so much else 1In
life opportunities. And I°ve found a real passion for it.

Sort of as a part of that, 1°ve come here a couple
times to University Prep and other schools that do some of
the same things where 1°ve gotten to speak with the students
and teachers and the administrators here. And Mr. Ziraldo
mentioned earlier that for many school s boring. 1 went to
a good high school. 1 had some really great teachers, but
overall 1 still felt my high school was really boring.

After | met the students here, 1 wanted to re-enroll in high
school. And so my boss®™ kids are going to be going to the
new University Prep Middle School, so I guess I°11 have to
vicariously live through them for those aspirations.

But I"m going to speak, | guess, in two areas.

One sort of representing Focus Hope and what we see, and

then sort of what 1"ve seen over the past two years where
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I"ve been going to different schools and having the
opportunity to actually delve in a little deeper, and just
some of the things I"ve observed in reflection. At Focus
Hope we deal with the products of Detroit Schools,
especially the Detroit Public Schools.

The students come to us to our post-secondary
education and job training programs. And you have to have a
high school diploma or a GED. But despite having that high
school diploma, many of them are coming to us without being
able to demonstrate reading or math skills at high school
level. To address this problem, since 1989 we"ve had
academic remediation or, as we prefer to call it, skill
enhancement courses. But these only help the students that
have already matriculated through the K-12 system. A
coordinated and strategic approach is needed to address the
roots of these problems. OFf course, today we"re speaking
about those who drop out or do not graduate from high
school. For the fact that so many high school graduates
cannot even test at high school reading or math levels,
underscores the severity and urgency of the problems in the
educational system.

And I believe that the discussion of dropout
really has to, of course, happen in the context of overall
changes in how we view schools and education as a whole. So

in that spirit 1°d like to make a few points about
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strategies that 1°ve seen as being productive and that work.
A lot of these things we talk about a lot, but these are
sort of my own observations from this. The first one |
wrote down here is rigor is really meaningless without the
relevance. |If we make a rigorous and challenging curriculum
but not make it interesting and relevant to each individual
student, we still fail to engage the student and risk
alienating them from their academics altogether.

The successful schools that I*ve seen focus on the
individual, tailor each student®"s educational plans to their
interests, talents and needs. Giving each child a role iIn
determining his or her educational path instills a sense of
responsibility and accountability and accurately engages
them in learning that would lead to careers and lives that
they desire. Real world experience and job shadowing,
internships and on site learning opportunities make
education and development interesting for students and makes
them far less likely to drop out as they see their potential
and the cost of not persisting to graduation.

One note | added to this is that at Focus Hope we
have a social worker that works with our students, adult
students. And we call her our social worker. We have all
these other titles. She calls herself the barrier buster.

I think that somebody else made a point that you just need

someone that is there with the student to resolve those



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

75

barriers, the very basic things that you can"t even have the
opportunity to be successful if those things were not
addressed.

A variety of approaches 1 think should be
supported. Given the dismal graduation and dropout rates
overall, all promising avenues should really be pursued.
Recognizing the diverse needs and learning styles of youth,
smaller high schools, charter schools, special ed schools,
foreign language immersion and other proven models should be
supported in Detroit giving students the greatest number of
opportunities for success.

Rigor demands supports. A rigorous curriculum is
a key element of successful students, but only when students
are given the appropriate support services to allow them to
succeed in a rigorous program. Children in our nation®s
urban centers face greater and more acute challenges than
their more affluent and/or suburban peers, ranging from
higher rates of poverty to lower rates of parents to read to
their children at home. Challenges of basic needs can
prevent even the brightest student from succeeding in
school. So these problems can be directly addressed and
mediated by schools and their resource networks, but only if
they"re properly identified.

At Focus Hope we speak a lot of a wholistic

approach, and I think we use this with our childcare center
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and in our adult problem, but we"re sort of the bookends.
We don"t have that K-12 component. But | think the lessons
translate across in both ways. The same lessons apply. If
we don"t address the whole person, we leave people behind.
And like the banner says, one person is too many. So thank
you.

MR. PRATT: Next we have Mary Kovari.

MS. KOVARI: (inaudible) I am Detroit Public Schools
teacher and 1 obviously am white, and 1 have met,
sir, plenty of ineffective African-American male teachers in
my time. And that®s where I want to talk to you today
about. There seems to be a lot of discussion here about
kids as if they"re sort of damaged in Detroit. And that has
not been my experience over the last 14 years. | have seen
nothing but kids who are full of potential, as the gentleman
who is no longer here in the white suit sort of alluded to.
And yet we do not have systems, schools that encourage
students to reach their potential and successfully complete
high school and go on to post-secondary education. And so
we know that school cultures and climates are very important
in ameliorating dropout rates, attendance and other issues.

But 1 would propose to you today that what about
academics? And are we saying that gentlemen like Paul, who
wants to go to CCS but we know is going to be dependent upon
his ACT scores, what about academics and are our kids worth

putting into place really good teachers, teachers that can
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have relationships with students that are academic in
nature?

Literacy, math, science and social studies
knowledge and skills matter if you are to own your own
business versus painting a car. And so I"m going to say to
you that you can"t, like Mr. Ross -- 1™"m sorry that he
left -- he has created a really good school system. But as
he told you himself, they are struggling with their
academics. Why? Because really good teaching matters.

So what might you ask is really good teaching?
Well, 1 would propose to you that National Board Certified
teachers know what really good teaching is. They are able
to drill down to students®™ academic needs and identify what
those are. They are able to set very high worthwhile goals
and have the repertoire of strategies that they can bring
into a classroom to meet those goals. They are able to
assess and collaborate together about whether what they are
doing is working. And they themselves need to learn
something about how to meet the students®" academic needs.

And so 1™m going to propose to this panel today
again that good teaching without a good school system does
not flourish. You become isolated. But good schools that
can deliver services to students will not flourish unless
they have good teachers that know what they"re doing. And

like 1 said to you again, | represent 14 years in Detroit
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and 1"m very proud of my work and the people that I have
come to know. And I would say to you that we need a bigger
push in this state toward supporting and growing national
board certified teachers. And we need to do that in urban
schools. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next up we have Annette Grays.

MS. GRAYS: Thank you. 1 work with Mike Tenbush
(phonetic), who is vice president of the United Way for
Southeastern Michigan. And he is really over our
educational preparedness problem. Mike wanted me to come
here this evening and share some of the work that we"re
doing to help reduce the high school dropout rates in this
region.

One of the things that we"ve learned about schools
iIs that to improve the high school graduation rates you have
to have the unions involved. [I™m really glad to see that
MEA as well as the AFT Michigan are playing a leadership
role in this effort. 1It"s critical that we do more than
have conversations about what needs to be done. We have to
create school environments that increase student achievement
and graduation rates. So now that we have diverse groups
like the MAPSA and the MEA sitting at the same table, we
feel confident that we will focus our role in bringing
proven practices to our region.

We know what works. Lots of cities and school
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districts have tried to improve achievement in their high
schools, and only a few districts have done so effectively.
A nonprofit research firm called Mass Insight analyzed what
those schools did that separated them where others had
failed. Mass Insight denoted the turnaround framework based
on lessons they learned. And the turnaround framework
emphasized three C"s that must be changed in order for our
kids to do better. The first thing is conditions.
Principals must have control over their people, budgets and
programs in their building. And in turn, they must be held
accountable for insuring that those kids achieve academic
success.

Second, they must have increased capacity.
Schools must also partner with an education intermediary,
and that i1s a nonprofit organization with a proven track
record of improving school achievement. Groups like the
Institute for Student Achievement and Works and First Things
First have proven track records of partnering with school
districts and unions to help plan high school turnaround.
And they successfully execute those plans over five years.
We need to include more improvement turnaround partners like
them to our region.

Finally, we have to create clusters. This work
cannot be done one school at a time. Clusters of schools

would work together in collaboration and in a competitive
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manner to lift up the best practices until excellence
becomes the norm for all schools, not just a few. The end
result is smaller, more personalized schools and classes
with a safe and more effective environment for teachers and
students alike. We"ve heard this message from several
partners that attended the one-day dropout summit that was
held in April at Lawrence Kay (phonetic). During that day
we heard from a number of experts, such as Governor Jennifer
Granholm, David Hecker, Dr. Connie Callaway, Mike

Flynn (phonetic) and other speakers about the importance of
turning around poor performing schools.

We convened this event in partnership in Detroit and
Detroit regional chambers, the Skillman Foundation and Detroit
Parent Network, Lawrence Tech and America®s Promise, just to
begin a dialogue that changing high school rates in this
area iIs an important thing for our region. For those of you
who didn"t have an opportunity to attend the one-day dropout
prevention, please feel free to visit the www.oneday.org
website. All of the audio comments are there from local and
national experts. The message for this event was very
clear. Turning around schools is possible. It has been
done. It can be done. And we can get it done here. Thus,
the question is not how to turn around schools, but whether
we have the ability to do so.

Governor Granholm in proposing legislation for the
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schools of the 21st Century Fund has answered the call. Her
proposed legislation is completely consistent with the
turnaround framework to improve the educational
opportunities within our schools. Our kids deserve the best
opportunity to succeed. And the dialogue that occurs this
evening is important to helping that cause. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next we have Dr. Geneva J. Williams.

DR. WILLIAMS: Good evening. It"s a delight to be
here. And first I want to commend and congratulate you for
not only the work iIn these hearings that you“re doing, but
that you®"re doing it together, because 1 think that"s very
important. |1 come before you today wearing several
different hats, as many of you do as well. And I°11 briefly
share two of them, but it"s really the third hat that 1 want
to concentrate on as you"re listening and hearing
suggestions for the future and for change.

First and most importantly, I am a parent of two
children who attend here at UPA, an eighth grader and a
ninth grader. Secondly, I%ve been in education-related
issues for quite awhile. 1 was chair of the Detroit
Compact, | was on the board of Western Michigan University,
I"m a former Detroit Public School board member, and
currently serve as chair of the board here at UPA, and also
I have a doctorate in educational leadership and public

studies from Wayne.
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I do think it"s significant that you“re here today
at UPA, not only because of its 90 percent graduation rate,
but also as Doug Ross mentioned, yesterday a number of young
African-American young men stood up and declared hope for
Detroit and what they were going to do and how they wanted
everyone else to do the same and to stay in school. And 1
think that®s one of the things that leads me to my third
reason for being here in that hat, and that is as president
and CEO of City Connect Detroit.

City Connect Detroit was established In 2001 by
the area foundations who wanted to use collaboration as a
strategy to attract national funding investment in Detroit.
Since we"ve been established, we"ve secured about $80
million for various collaborative initiatives, proving that
the i1dea of working together is more than something that
people just nod their heads to, but in fact can be a
strategic way to create community and institutional change.
And so 1 want to really focus my comments on this whole idea
of working together to address an issue such as the dropout
rate, which you frankly have demonstrated by these various
organizations coming together and trying to pool your
resources and synergy to focus on a problem. Because it"s
our belief that that frankly is the only way we"re going to
be able to solve issues like this.

We run about 20 or so different collaboratives
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focusing on a number of different areas. One of our largest
is our Detroit Positive Youth Development collaborative,
which we"ve secured about $50 million for over the past
several years. Now, this effort is focused mainly on after
school programming. And it is a collaboration of Detroit
Public Schools, foundations, agencies, et cetera, who come
together to service about 3,000 young people every year in a
number of Detroit Public Schools. What"s key about it is,
again, the synergy of family, community, schools working
together, focused on the child, with the child in the center
of all of the attention and focus. It"s recently been cited
that Detroit is running a best practice model for after
school programming. Now, why is this important. It"s
important because we do know that these kinds of
partnerships, that is, that involve community organizations
and individuals in the school in partnerships with teachers
and principals, has an effect on student achievement; more
importantly, though, on attendance and young people staying
in school. The research does show that; that when there are
more adults, caring adults, involved in young people®s
lives, they tend to stick to it.

But why the name of Detroit Positive Youth
Development Collaborative? Really the whole idea is we talk
a lot about education, but 1 really think we"re talking

about how young people grow and develop. Young people need
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caring adults in their lives. Young people need
relationships with their parents, with teachers, with the
community. And what happens when you have these kinds of
school community partnerships, you have the essence of those
relationships built in that can support young people. But
we also know, and 1 think UPA is a good example of this,
that young people besides the subject matter and the
academics, they also need authentic learning experiences and
the motivation.

I wanted to share with you that we did talk to
young people as part of a Mott Out of School initiative. In
partnership with Michigan®s Children, Mott has asked the
Detroit community and a couple of other communities across
the state to develop a community plan that focuses attention
on those young people who are out of school as well as
strategies to keep young people in school. And in talking
to young people about that, youth voices, young people said
four things, and I just want to share this with you, that
were barriers to them staying in school: Safety; that is,
the lack of feeling safe and poor building and sanitation
maintenance, gang violence; the lack of academic enrichment
opportunities; the lack of social support systems; that is,
commission between students and teachers and mentoring, lack
of teacher and staff support, and parental support as they

saw it; and Ffinally, policies and procedures were seen as
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lack of adequate supplies, school closings, et cetera.

So these four things were seen as barriers to the

young people that we have talked to, and this kind of
information will be incorporated into this community plan
that we"re now developing to address this issue, which will
be based on a collaborative approach. 1°d be happy to
answer any questions or any further comments. |1 think my
time is up.

MS. CLAYTOR PETERS: 1 just also wanted to
comment on that last point. The Mott -- the C.S. Mott
funded School Youth Initiative, which is here in Detroit at
City Connect and Michigan®s Children has been working with,
this issue of being able -- there is interest in the
foundation community, and | just want to underscore what
Geneva also said, which is what we"re finding in several
communities; that we have to pull together as this
initiative is doing. People that are involved and are
educators along with people who are involved in other ways,
people that can pull in the child welfare questions that we
heard expressed a little earlier today. It does take a
multidisciplinary approach to really address this issue
about school youth. The one other area that we are hearing,
and 1 haven"t heard anybody mention it today and we have

been hearing it in that initiative around the state, is that
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discipline practices in schools, particularly zero tolerance
practices, practices that -- especially the more
discretionary subjective areas that have to do with verbal
assault and all those pieces, we are seeing kids who are
actually pushed out of school as well as those that are not
being embraced inside. And 1 just wanted to add that one
issue as one of the places that 1 think we need to put some
attention.

DR. WILLIAMS: Yeah. We saw that, too. It was
expressed as unfailr or inappropriate suspensions,
expulsions, detention and discipline, you know, as the young
people perceived it being unfair.

MR. QUISENBERRY: Geneva, thank you for
coming tonight and waiting for your testimony.

DR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.

MR. QUISENBERRY: But thinking ahead and
hearing what you"re saying, the importance of those
partnerships and collaboration and recognizing this is
headed towards the governor and the legislature at some
point, would you make some specific recommendations that are
things that need to be changed in the state policy or law
that could encourage that rather than people just having to
plow through?

DR. WILLIAMS: Yeah. A couple of things; one is

that we do have a prepared statement we"ll leave with you
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that gives a lot of specifics. But one thing is that we do
think that more of an emphasis on this encouraging,
mandating parental and community involvement. Policies must
be at school districts and policies that have legs on it so
that in fact you do -- this problem, this issue cannot be
done by educators alone. There just is no way. It just
can"t happen. We need parental and community engagement.
And so we need to put some teeth in that, I would think, in
any legislation so that there®s more emphasis on it at the
state level. We do have federal legislation that talks
about 1t, but more teeth in it.

I think another area is in fact training and
development on how to engage parents and communities. We
tend to think that because educators are wonderful, master-s
of their craft in a classroom that they also know how to
engage and talk to parents and community individuals. And I
don®t think that"s always the case. So there are
techniques. | mean, there"s a science to community
engagement and social work and all those kinds of things,
but that kind of training and development. We also know
that for the high schools in particular that are successful
around the country they have successful school and community
partnerships, so they have in fact brought that in.

Another area are work rules, and that"s the thing

that we"re finding too that there are rules and regulations
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that are in schools that sometimes are barriers to parental
and community involvement and engagement. So | think as

we -- 1T we want to build that engagement in schools, which
we think iIs very important, that we have to put the teeth on
the funding side as well as the training and professional
development side. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: 1 have three cards left. First up we
have Mary Ellen Lowe, then Kimberly Kyff, and then Oren
Goldenberg. If there"s anybody else in the audience who
wishes to speak but I don®t have a card for, now is the time
to get it.

MS. LOWE: 1"m glad that I"m —- 1"m following up
on what she®"s saying, because it"s exactly what | was going
to share. I1"ve been with Detroit Public Schools for 11
years iIn fourth grade -- teaching fourth grade. And what I
would like to -- 1™m just going to speak heart to heart
about what 1 see and the reality in my classroom.

The disengagement begins as early as third and
fourth grade. And this is the reason -- I"m just going to
share. There"s a whole bunch of different variables, but
I"m going to share probably the two greatest ones that | see
and that we see in our building. And probably the biggest
one, the most frustrating one for us, is attendance. And
unfortunately, 20 percent of my students every year have 30

to 50 absences yearly beginning in kindergarten. And by the
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time that they"re in third and fourth grade they"re so far
behind that it"s almost impossible for us to catch them up.
And they are the ones that end up in (inaudible) of dropping
out of school i1f you look at the records.

Also -- and we do have systemic procedures to
follow, but it"s such a grave problem that it"s very
difficult to address and legislate. So we also -- 1"m just
going to tell you about a conversation that 1 had with my
students the other day. The gang activity came up just in a
conversation it came up. And so | was just curious, so |
questioned it. And I said, "How many of you have relatives
in gangs?'" And about 80 percent of my students raised their
hands. And then I said, "How many of you are thinking of
possibly joining a gang?" Five students in fourth grade
raised their hand. And then one of them came up to me later
and said he"s already in a gang. And 1 followed through
with the -- I mean, 1 don"t know what the extent is, but
they knew the names of all the neighborhood gangs, they
knew -- they could tell me stories of things that had
happened, relatives that are in prison. And | attended a
wake of a student who lost two cousins to gang shootings.
And ironically, he"s one of the ones that said he wanted to
join a gang. And so it"s just that"s the reality of these

students.

And I do believe that a social worker is helpful.
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We do have a social worker in our building (inaudible) but
It"s not enough. And it just isn"t enough. She does the
best she can. She legitimately does. But the magnitude,
again, 1s so great. And so I1"m excited to hear about all
the community organizations that are going on, and there®s
so much going on. And 1 do the best | can as theilr teacher.
We are social workers. We are their social workers. And
we, you know -- we do the best we can. But the need is so
great that -- 1 don"t know her name, the lady who just
spoke. I™m sorry. She®"s got it. It"s got to be it I were
a queen of the world, what I would do, you know, if I were
in charge, 1 would have somebody in the building that would
work with the community who -- every building would have
somebody in their building that is, like, a community
liaison. And they would know the needs of the students in
their buildings and they would be able to say, ""That family
over there doesn"t have clothes, and so we"ll find an
organization that can give them clothes. That family over
there, you know, lost someone to a gang, so maybe we need to
do anti-gang counseling with the school'™ or something like
that, someone who knows the needs of the community and knows
the organizations and can bring them in and draw them in.
But 1t"s got to be a collaborative effort. It"s got to be,
because that"s the reality. So if there"s any legislation

that you can do to try to get not a counselor, not a social
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worker, but there"s so many resources out there that each
building would have their own community -- there-"s
communities in schools and, you know, the different
organizations, so something like that is how 1 see we could
really get to the bottom of all these issues when they"re
little, because it starts in kindergarten. And we lose them
by the time they“re in fourth grade. They"re already --
they“"re already headed down the -- they"re the ones that you
see that end up -- you can see. So that"s my suggestion.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next up is Kimberly Kyff.

MS. KYFF: 1 decided that since my two colleagues
survived | could come up and say, yes, | am a Detroit Public
Schools teacher. 1 am an elementary teacher. And the
children do begin disengaging and essentially beginning the
dropout process in third grade.

When 1 get them as Fifth graders, they and their
parents, they"re disenfranchised, they"re disengaged, and
it"s real hard to get them back. But they can be gotten
back. And we have -- what"s so exciting is that we have all
of the proper things in place. The state board has
initiated positive behavior support. That gives us a safe,

caring, nurturing environment for our classrooms and our
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schools. We have universal design for learning. What we
really need to go back with my friend Mary is if we -- if
the teacher in front of those children is effective and
truly shows those children that they love them and care for
them, it doesn"t matter if they"re male, they"re female or
what nationality. Because what the child sees is -- the
child sees and even the older children, they see someone
that cares. And sometimes the school environment is the
only place where it"s consistent.

So how are we going to leave any more children
behind? Are we going to stop the dropout crisis? We have
to nurture our kids. We have to cherish them. We have to
challenge them. We have to love them. We have to lead them
and push them further than they think they“re going to go.
And we can -- we can do it. But Detroit Public Schools
can"t do i1t all by themselves. And the charters and all the
different agencies, we can™"t do it all alone. We all have
to come together for the one common purpose. Thank you.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: Thank you. It was nice to
see you again.

MS. KYFF: 1t was nice to see you as well. How
are you?

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: I am excellent. And I hope
that during your time in Lansing as teacher of the year that

you were able to push a little bit more for National Board
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Certification. And that has been one of my battle cries for a
long time. We need more money. That®"s to help support
those teachers to go for national boards because
it"s a difficult process.

MS. KYFF: 1t is. We need more mentoring programs
around the state as well.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: And we need some mentoring
programs for them also, and get administration to
understand --

MS. KYFF: To buy into the process, yes.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: -- that they need to
support in the building.

MS. KYFF: Yes.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: And I think if we got more

national board teachers we would see a great turn about,

too.

MS. KYFF: Oh, I™m positive.

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: They are special to me.
Thank you.

MS. MCLELLAN: 1°d just like to thank the
teachers who have come here on -- as a lifelong teacher
myself, 1 obviously have a bias. 1 can"t express strongly

enough how important it is that we listen to these folks.
They"re the ones that are there in the classroom with those

kids every single day, and they know what®"s going on.
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You"re just doing a marvelous job. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Last up, unless there®s anybody else,
Mr. Oren Goldenberg.

MR. GOLDENBERG: It looks like most people came to
speak, and there®s not that many people left from the
community that the school is embedded in. But I"m here
because I got an e-mail from Grace Lee Boggs, who I*m sure
most people admire, because I"m working on a documentary
down in Detroit public education, specifically Detroit"s
high schools. 1"m working with many in the DPS office, and
they have been to over 15 public high schools in Detroit,
ranging from Cass Tech to Southeastern to Kensington,
Finney, Catherine Ferguson, Breithaupt, and I"m just trying
to understand Detroit"s public school system from a
completely objective perspective.

Because 1 went to public school -- 1 went to
private school for eight years, and then I went to public
school in the suburbs from Berkley. So public education
served me very well. 1 graduated from the University of
Michigan and now 1 work with -- in an environment where most
people aren®t going to college. And so kind of what Grace
tends to say, and I think 1It"s an amazing way of looking at
the dropout crisis -- and it wasn"t voiced here -- but that
the students are voting with their feet essentially. This

is like you"re presenting them options and they"re choosing one.
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There is for as many people who came here and
spoke a lot of different -- about a lot of different
techniques or different organizations, kind of pinpointing
and targeting certaln areas or reasons why people are
dropping out, but in the end, I know kids who are in foster
care who are graduating on top of their class from
Southeastern. Southeastern, by the way, has many great
stories coming out of there. |1 know kids single parents, no
male role models, pregnant. Catherine Ferguson Academy,
they"re -- 1 don*t know what their numbers are, but they"re
doing an amazing job graduating pregnant teens and teens who
are mothers.

So It can"t be that one reason or the other is why
people are not graduating. And that even leads to a broader
point, whether people are being encouraged to graduate too,
because all 1 heard tonight was graduate and go to college.
And when 1 speak to students, | say, "Why do you come to
school?" That"s always my Ffirst question. Because they"re
there, they"re in front of me. |If I have a chance to talk
to them, I like to know why they®"re in school. And they
usually say, "To get an education.”™ 1"m, like, "What does
that mean? Why do you want an education? Why?" It"s
ingrained somewhere, because it"s a very repetitive

response, to get an education. Then they say, "To go to
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college so I can make something of myself so I can get out
of here.” And 1 always here the "‘get out of here.” And
that always shocks me. And it doesn"t shock me. 1 mean,
everybody wants to get out of Detroit. My parents got out
of Detroit, you know. 1It"s kind of the mentality that
remains here. And, you know, the idea of getting -- going
to college, if you look at the return on people who are
going to university from -- University of Michigan from
Detroit, how many are coming back? So it"s not even the
fact of, like, we"re going to get an opportunity to get an
education, because then that"s still taking those people out
of the city. And this is -- | mean, we"re -- generally we
talked about Detroit tonight. 1 know this is Michigan
dropout but, you know, this has been the point of the
conversation of what I know about most. But there needs to
be a larger draw of why people stay connected, want to be
here and, like, involve themselves. And if you look at
going to school kind of as a choice, which It is, you can
either go to school and make something of yourself and get
out of here, because most people who are getting out of here
aren®"t going to come back, you know. That"s like a

hope -- you"d say, '"Oh, and I hope you come back."™ But
that"s not part of getting an education Is to support where
you come from. Or the other option is, "1"m going to drop

out," and usually join the street life of some sort, which 1
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this a local economy, which is what people are gravitating
towards.

And so, you know, there"s a lot of breaking down
of what the issues are, but it"s about supporting the
community that you"re going to school in. And these schools
are these centers that people go to even though they don"t
want to learn. They still go to socialize, to show off, to
get away from home. Like, they“"re still these centers that
people are going to and there needs to be a connection to
the area that they“"re In. That"s the education that needs
to happen. You create your future. You create, like -- why
do the streets around the schools look the way they do?

Here you have 800, 900 people going to school that --

what? -- can"t clean up a couple of yards, like, next to
you? Yeah. People are throwing it down. But where is that
education, then, that you are in control of your
surroundings? And 1 think what some people alluded to today
was you don"t see yourself —-- if you can"t see yourself in
other people, then how are you going to imagine that you
can?

And that®s really 1 think the challenge, and it"s
just not in terms of education. It"s in terms of the social
and economic structure that"s being created in Detroit. And
I think people are here today because it"s exciting and

things are happening and kids are dropping out and Kids are
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staying in school. There"s things like UPA coming up. And
I work at -- 1 teach after school video at UPA. And that"s
kind of how 1 adjust, because 1 work in public schools only,
public high schools. 1 teach at their middle school after
school. And that"s an incredible place, and they“"re doing a
amazing things. And, like, no doubt, they pay their
teachers a lump sum money so they -- the teachers do engage
extra hours and they do have a community around it, but they
have 16 kids in their class. And the scary part about that
is these are, like, catch-up situations and, like, they-“re
taking a certain group of people and working with them. And
the public school system, which I believe a great city like
Detroit needs to have in place where education is for
everybody, you don"t need a parent to enroll you, you can
just walk up there and, like, you follow your friends to
where they"re going and you go to a school, at a charter
school you have to sign up, so, like, in rethinking of
education to keep kids in, you"ve got to rethink about the
whole social structure around the school and how you connect
the kids to it. And there®s a lot of great examples going
on.

The UPA does a lot as well with gardening and,
like, we"ve got to be -- iIt"s got to be -- 1t"s hard to
express it all in, like, how ever long -- 1 don"t even know

how long 1 had to begin with. But there®s so much going on
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and you have to connect the kids to it. Some people have
asked me, like, "Why don"t you teach street economics in a
classroom?™ Well, 1 don"t know if people are going to okay
that, you know. And so we really need to rethink what are
educations for. What do we want? Do we want people to go
to college so they can go off and work for someone else?
People who live in the community express that®"s not what
they want here, you know; that you want to own businesses,
you know, and you want to invest in where you live and
become a part of where you live. And if going to school
somewhere -- like, it"s the whole goal is to go and get an
education and get a job, then you"re working for someone
still and it"s the same predicament. Thanks.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

MR. GOLDENBERG: Thanks for waiting.

MR. PRATT: Anybody we missed? Okay. [I1*1l1 turn
to the panelists, and we"re just going to have a quick
conversation where 1 think the question 1 want to ask you is
the themes that have come out of this thing, what did you
hear today that you really want the people at the end of
this process when they read the report about these -- in
these hearings, when they read the testimony? What do you
think i1t most important we heard today that needs to come
out of this conversation? [1"1l start here with Sharon.

MS. CLAYTOR-PETERS: Thank you. There are several



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

100

things. One, the quality of teaching really is key. And I
can"t -- 1 really appreciate the three women sitting up here
who kind of are representing that, but it"s come through.
And teaching really is about relationships -- quality
teaching is about relationships as well. And that is a
piece of what we"re hearing. We know, though, that teachers
and schools, educators, can®"t do it by themselves. Schools
need to be connected with communities and maybe centers for
a lot of community services, and they can be. And we

have -- there are some policy issues that are looking at
that. The Department of Human Services is really looking at
these family resource centers in schools in order to create
those kinds -- so there are things that can be done at a
policy level for that for those kinds of ways to approach.

But 1 really wanted to emphasize that this issue
of multiple pathways to success in high schools has to be
key; that we cannot put ourselves on -- so we have great
standards now for high school, but we -- if we"re going to
be successful with all our kids, we have to have multiple
ways to get them there.

I wanted to just say really quickly, there are
some materials outside that Michigan®s Children provided --
that Michigan Children is providing that are specifically
about the dropout issue. One does look at -- and we"ve

talked about it earlier -- the costs of not graduating our
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kids. And the other one looks at the differential or the
disparities on racial and ethnic lines and the fact that we
really can"t afford it if we want to see a successful
Michigan in the future. We need to make sure that all our
kids are successful. And | realize a lot of people have
already left. |1 hope that they saw those materials. But I
wanted to draw attention to them now.

We talked about all these areas, discipline,
differential discipline, but the caring piece -- the piece
that I think is overarching from whether it"s quality
educators or quality community members is connecting and
caring for our Kids. And that"s where our Kkids -- when our
kids come and express it and -- 1 am in agreement with the
people who said we don®"t have enough young -- we"re not
listening enough to the young people themselves, that"s one
of the things the young people said, caring adults. They
want to see it iIn their teachers, but they want to see it iIn
other places, too. It"s so important. And we can all
contribute to that.

MR. PRATT: Thank you, Sharon. Peggy?

MS. MCLELLAN: The word and the idea that 1 kept
hearing over and over today was 'collaboration.”™ The
unions, the communities, the parents, all of the community
groups need to be collaborating. 1 thought that Oren made a

really good point when he talked about the fact that the
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communities need to be places where our graduates want to
stay. They need to be able to look around the neighborhood
and the school that they®re in and say, "l like this place.
I want to live here. | want to raise my children here. |
want to start a business here."™ That was a really
interesting point that you made. 1"m glad you said that.

And It is so very important that we all
collaborate not only with one another, but I think we all
need to be collaborating and looking toward our legislators
and say, ""Look, all of us care about this and we"re willing
to throw ourselves into it if you will help.”

Quality teaching, again, is so very important in
all of our schools at all grade levels. 1 think a very
important point was made by these three ladies here when
they said the dropout process starts when they"re in third
grade. And I taught high school for my whole career, and 1
can tell you that it"s true. By the time they got to me, a
lot of them were just waiting for that 16th birthday so they
did not have to come back to school anymore. And it didn"t
matter what we did at that point. They were unhappy. They
hated it and they couldn®t wait to get out. So that
recognition needs to be there. We need to be working to
make the schools a place where they want to be. 1 don"t
have all the answers for that. But of all the people that I

heard here today, | certainly wish they had stuck around,
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because together 1 think we had -- we could have taken on
the world with all of the fine people that we had who could
work together.

And 1 think again we do need to encourage parent
involvement. But in many instances parents need to learn
how to be involved. We have many parents -- 1"m speaking
with Lois earlier and 1 said, "l heard once that 95 percent
of the parents are doing the best they can.” And it"s
really true. But sadly, when you have a parent who"s only
16 years old, the best he or she can do is not always
adequate. So i1If we can somehow work with parents and help
them to be the best parents and the best advocates for their
kids, that"s going to go a long way, too.

MR. PRATT: Lois?

MS. LOFTON-DONIVER: Okay. I will not repeat the
same things, because 1 agree with all of that. We do need
collaboration. But 1 would like to talk just briefly about
we need to establish those early childhood education
programs. We do need preschool and we need mandatory full
day kindergarten. And that is something that the
legislation needs to look hard at. 1 don"t know. So many
people have left, but IDA has now agreed that 20 percent of
the funding of that program, federal, it"s not funded all
the way like i1t should be, but now 20 percent of it can be

used in regular education for response to intervention. So
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we can start doing some things at their early grade level.
Because 1 agree, by third or fourth grade we"ve lost them.
High school is over. But we need to look at smaller class
sizes, definitely professional development, back to national
board standards. |If you get that kind of professional
development, they will be fine.

We cannot teach a person to care. All we keep
saying we want caring adults, then maybe we need to look at
our screening process, our candidates when we bring them
into the field, really have an interview, not just because
she passed the test. And then we maybe can get those caring
individuals. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. Dan?

MR. QUISENBERRY: Thank you. Again, thank you for
everyone who has participated in those. 1 am going to
repeat some of them, because 1 think the points are so
important that we did hear a lot of great things. 1 agree
with Peggy, even with this room that was here tonight, if we
could tackle the issues we have in front of us, I think we
could make some progress. But we heard a lot about all of
the significant challenges, and we can"t underestimate that.
Please know as an individual sitting here, those mean a lot
to us. It means a lot to me personally to know that there
are really huge problems that are mind boggling. We heard

it from the students, we heard it from parents, we heard it
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from community leaders, we heard it from teachers. So it is
not a matter of not knowing that there are some significant
problems.

But we also heard a lot about the importance of
rigor, relevancy and relationships. And those are almost
overused words these days, but I guess I heard it in almost
everything somebody was saying. So | took away from that we
have to do a good -- a better job of implementing those
things. And in all of our schools that all students have
access to those three components.

Partnerships was a big theme tonight that we
haven"t heard in a couple of the other hearings, and I heard
some things that need to be changed in state policy and
legislation. Maybe it"s our local policies or rules on how
to really engage our community partners in helping solve our
problems. | think it was important to hear from students
tonight. They too play a significant role in how we"re
going to do this. It isn"t just those of us in the
education system. Students themselves -- and Paul is a
remarkable guy, and his answer 1 think was honest, which is,

"1 don"t know how 1"m doing it. 1It"s just iInside."

Teacher quality, thank you. We heard from several

teachers tonight. 1 agree those things are very important.
And the right person standing in that room that"s really

well trained is critical.
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